
Page 1 of 3 

 

City Council Meeting and Workshop         

September 22, 2014 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Options on Assessor/Assessing Dept (Howard Kroll) (45 minutes) 

B.       Discussion regarding labor negotiations pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(D). (45 minutes) 

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting 

 

Roll call votes will begin with Councilor LaFontaine 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

1. Resolve 09-09222014*  
Supporting the Recreational Trail Grant 

 

II.    Minutes – September 8, 2014 Regular Council Meeting  
 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  

             City Councilors’ Reports   

 City Manager Report  

 

            Finance Director, Jill Eastman - August 2014 Monthly Finance Report 

 

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions   

o Police Department Promotions 

o Police Department Swearing in Officers 

o Proclamation for Polish Fire Officer Cadet Norbert Janik 

o Swearing in four new Firefighters 

o Swearing in of New Lieutenants, Captain and Battalion Chief 

o Introduction and swearing in of EMS Director. 

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

                                        

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

2. Ordinance 06-08182014 

Adopting the most current edition of the National electrical Code NFPA 70-2014. Public hearing and 

second reading. 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 September 22, 2014 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

3. Ordinance 07-09082014 

Adopting the zoning ordinance amendment (Taylor Pond). Public hearing and first reading.  
 

VII.    New Business  
 

4. Resolve 10-09222014 

Supporting the creation of a Finance Committee. 

 

5. Ordinance 08-09222014 

Adopting the 2013 Maine Food Code. 

 

6. Order 78-09222014  
Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junk yard at Bucks Auto, 249 Merrow Road. Public 

Hearing. 

 

7. Order 79-09222014 
Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junk yard at Morris Auto, 940 Washington Street. Public 

Hearing. 

 

8. Order 80-09222014 

Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junk yard at M & P Auto, 227 Merrow Road. Public 

Hearing. 

 

9. Order 81-09222014 

Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junk yard at Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street. Public 

Hearing.  

 

10. Order 82-09222014 

Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junk yard at Isodore T. Miller Co., 78-79 Hotel Road. 

Public Hearing. 

 

11. Order 83-09222014 

Approving the renewal of an Auto Graveyard/Junk yard at Prolerized New England Company, 522 

Washington Street. N. Public Hearing.  

 

VIII. Executive Session  

 Discussion regarding Minot Avenue Development pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A Section 405(6)(C) 

 

IX.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                               City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 

in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 

required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 September 22, 2014 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into 

executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known 

at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session 

are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal 

government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 

disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 

E. Contemplated litigation 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that 

body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 

30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 

the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 
Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Assessing Department Options 
 
Information:  
 
The City Manager has consulted with Don Jutton of MRI & Associates regarding our Assessing Department 
and what is the best method to implement a departmental structure that meets the needs of the City, customer 
service for our citizens and statutory requirements as set forth by the State.  
During our discussions and initial consultation it was apparent that a much wider scope might be in order due to 
the rapidly approaching retirement of key City of Lewiston Assessing Department Personnel and their future 
Assessing Department needs.  
Don Jutton is recommending that we look at combining the 2 (two) Assessing Departments into one that serves 
both municipalities. As you know this has been recommended numerous times in the past.  
 
MRI will have until 30 April 2015 to report back their findings and final recommendation.  
 
The 2008 Joint Services Commission Report recommended to combine the 2 departments and as you know 
never happened. What did happen and I am happy to report is that Auburn did reduce its costs for Assessing by 
nearly $100,000 from FY08 budget to FY15 budget.  
To avoid a repeat in history I would like to discuss with you what Auburn’s options are for Assessing. We can 
look at combining but again there has to be mutual agreement versus one winner/one loser. It is inevitable one is 
going to feel like they got the worse end of the deal. Our options will included but not be limited to (1) FTE 
only model, (2) FTE with a combination of outsourcing particular tasks such as quarterly reviews and or 
inspections for example, (3) Outsourcing the entire department to a private firm, (4) Combining the Auburn and 
Lewiston Assessing Department and sharing the staffing resources across the 2 cities and (5) seek potential 
options at a County level such as Cumberland County who has recently funded an Assessing Department that 
has contracted services with the Towns of Falmouth, Cumberland and Yarmouth.  
 

 
Pro’s & Con’s:  
 
 
PRO’S 
 

(1) More efficient department.  
(2) Better customer service 
(3) Coordination of efforts with Lewiston (if they are interested) to further demonstrate our commitment to 

providing professional services 
(4) More professional personnel that can be shared across the 2 Cities 

 
 

 

Council Workshop Date:  22 Sep 14 Item  A 

Author:   Howard Kroll 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



City Council 
Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
 
 
CON’S 
 

(1) Unknown costs if we decided to merge or agree to a hybrid model 
(2) If we were to merge we would have 2 different Assessing Software packages- need to share 1 software 
(3) Fear of loss of control 
(4) Employee impacts- unknown- are we staffed appropriately at the current level? 
(5) Coordinate of work plans- how are they different 
(6) Coordination of budget planning 
(7) Which community is going to utilize the service above the budgeted time 

 
 

Financial: 
 
NONE at this time- Assessing Department budgets may or may not be effected 
 

 
Action Requested at this Meeting:  
 
INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  
 
 
NONE 

 
Attachments:  
 

(1) Original MRI Agreement 
(2) Proposed AMENDED MRI Agreement 
(3) Excerpts from the Maine Municipal Association (MMA) Municipal Officers manual and Assessor 

manual regarding Assessor position 
(4) 36 M.R.S.A. § 327-Minimum Assessing Standards 
(5) Joint Commission Report on Assessing Department 2008 
(6) FY2008 Assessing Department Budget 
(7) FY2015 Assessing Department Budget 
(8) Email from MRI to Auburn and Lewiston City Manager/Administrator seeking amendment to contract 
 
 
 
 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 













 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 
 
I. PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement, dated __________________, is to retain professional consulting services for the City of 
Auburn, Maine (the Client), to be provided by Municipal Resources, Inc. (MRI), and is lawfully entered 
into between the Client, by its authorized representative, Clinton Deschene, City Manager, and MRI, by 
its authorized representative, Donald R. Jutton, President. 
 
 
II. SCOPE OF WORK  
 
MRI will assign Joseph W. Lessard and Donald R. Jutton to support the City’s efforts to identify, 
explore, and evaluate alternative approaches to providing the most cost effective and sustainable 
structure for performing and managing the essential aspects of the City’s Tax Assessing Operations 
and to assist as requested with developing a transition plan and implementation strategy. 
 
The primary areas of focus, along with potential cross variations that may evolve during research and 
discussion, include: 
 

A. Maintaining an in-house staffing model with realigned roles and responsibilities so that 
there is better and more efficient allocation of staff talent/cost based upon current and 
projected work volume. 
 

B. Outsourcing some or all of the assessing functions to competent, capable private 
contractors or public sector organizations in the Lewiston/Auburn region. 

 
C. Assessing the viability of working with other municipalities and/or the county to 

develop a regional assessing operation model capable of accommodating the needs of 
multiple communities and taking advantage of the inherent efficiencies and economies 
of scale associated with operating at a more expansive level. 

 



III. FEES AND CHARGES 
 
Our services for this project will be provided on a time and expense basis, with the understanding that 
billings for professional services will not exceed $5,000.00, without specific written authorization. 
 
Fees and charges for MRI services performed will be invoiced monthly.  MRI will provide a detailed, 
itemized description of the services provided and expenses incurred.  Payments will be made within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice unless otherwise agreed.  Invoices not paid within thirty (30) 
days will accrue interest at the rate of 1.5% per month.  
 
Fees for professional services will be calculated at the appropriate billable hourly rate for personnel 
assigned, as follows: 
 
  Donald R. Jutton $140.00/hour 
  Joseph W. Lessard $100.00/hours 
  Clerical   $  40.00/hour 
 
Travel time will be billed at 50% of the normal hourly rate and will be charged after the first ½ hour of 
travel to, and the first ½ hour of travel from, the Client’s location.   
 
Mileage will be billed at the current IRS per mile travel rate. 
 
In the event that the work schedule requires overnight accommodations at the Client’s location, the 
MRI consultant will be reimbursed actual cost of accommodations plus $35 for meal expense. 
  
 
IV. MRI PERSONNEL IN CHARGE 
 
Donald R. Jutton, President, will serve as Principal-In-Charge of this engagement, coordinating 
activities, interfacing directly with the Client, and participating throughout the engagement as 
required.  Joseph W. Lessard will serve as Lead Consultant on this project.  Team members will be 
assigned and participate upon request of the Client. 
 
Gail H. Schillinger will serve as the Communication Liaison between the Client and MRI to expedite the 
flow of project information, to record and properly direct Client inquiries regarding the project, and to 
ensure that problems or issues that may arise during the engagement are addressed and resolved 
expeditiously.  Please feel free to contact Ms. Schillinger regarding any matter related to this project 
at:   
 
 Gail H. Schillinger 
 Communication Liaison
 Municipal Resources, Inc. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Professional Services Agreement – Assessing Services  Page 2 
City of Auburn, Maine 
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. 
June 2014 



 120 Daniel Webster Highway 
 Meredith, NH  03253 
 (603) 279-0352, x-303 
 (866) 501-0352, x-303 TOLL FREE 
 gschillinger@municipalresources.com 
 
Communications or correspondence related to any problems, issues, or changes required for this 
project shall be directed to the Client at the following address: 

 
 Clinton Deschene 
 City Manager 
 City of Auburn 
 60 Court Street 
 Auburn, ME  04210 
 (207) 333-6600 
 cdeschene@auburnmaine.gov 
 
 
V. TERM 
 
This agreement shall remain in force and effect through completion of the assignment.   
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN ADDENDUM I, ATTACHED HERETO 
AND INCORPORATED HEREWITH. 
 
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED  
 
THE CITY OF AUBURN, ME   MUNICIPAL RESOURCES, INC. 
 
 
______________________________   _________________________________ 
Clinton Deschene, City Manager  Donald R. Jutton, President 
Date: _________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Professional Services Agreement – Assessing Services  Page 3 
City of Auburn, Maine 
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. 
June 2014 

mailto:gschillinger@municipalresources.com
mailto:cdeschene@auburnmaine.gov


 
ADDENDUM I 

 
 
A. MUTUAL REPRESENTATIONS 
 
MRI represents to the Client it is a duly constituted corporation under the laws of the State of New 
Hampshire and is authorized to do business in the State of Maine as a professional services corporation. 
 
MRI has in force and effect general commercial liability and errors and omissions insurance coverage to 
protect the Client from accidents which MRI or its authorized representatives may cause to persons or 
property or from professional errors or omissions when performing under this agreement. 
 
MRI has no liens or encumbrances which would adversely affect the ability of MRI to perform as 
stipulated under this agreement, its terms, and conditions. 
 
The Client represents to MRI that sufficient funds have been appropriated so it may retain and 
compensate MRI for the services provided for herein. 
 
The Client's representative is authorized to enter into this agreement on behalf of the Client. 
 
The Client is aware of no action, contemplated action, liability or other encumbrance which would limit or 
otherwise preclude the Client from freely entering into this agreement and compensating MRI for the 
services provided. 
 
B. NOTICE OF CHANGE OF PERSONNEL  
 
Except as otherwise provided below, the MRI consultants assigned to any scope of work or project will 
remain throughout the duration of that specific scope of work or project.  MRI retains the right, upon 30 
days written notice, to remove from the project any of its consultants whom it believes can no longer 
suitably perform under its obligations to this agreement or any Supplement to it. 
 
The Client, upon 30 days written notice, may request MRI to replace any of its consultants with another 
qualified representative. 
 
C. ADMINISTRATION OF AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS 
 
In all cases where this agreement is modified or expanded a written Supplemental Scope of Work 
(Supplement) must be prepared which clearly defines the services to be provided and details the 
billing rates or amounts to be charged by MRI and paid by the Client.  Supplements must be executed 
by the authorized representatives of the respective parties prior to any billable work being 
undertaken.  The Supplement(s) shall identify: 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Professional Services Agreement – Assessing Services  Page 4 
City of Auburn, Maine 
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. 
June 2014 



 
• The MRI officer or principal responsible for the successful delivery of services and/or 

project completion and the client's contracting official(s) or officer(s); 
• The specific details of the work to be performed; 
• The MRI personnel to be assigned; 
• The basis upon which MRI services are being retained, including the normal hourly 

rate(s), cost reduction considerations or the agreed upon fee(s) for the personnel 
assigned and/or the services provided; 

• The Client’s contact person responsible for administering the Supplement, activities or 
project and the associated reporting requirements; and 

• Any special or other conditions such as time deadlines, special reporting requirements, 
budget limitations, or other similar constraints. 

 
D. NON-SOLICITATION 
 
The Client agrees that, for a period of one-year following the completion of the terms of this Agreement, 
they shall not, directly or indirectly, hire, solicit, or otherwise encourage any MRI personnel or affiliates 
assigned to this Agreement, to leave MRI's employment. 
 
In the alternative, if the client should wish to hire any MRI personnel or affiliate assigned to this 
Agreement it agrees to compensate MRI with payment in the amount of 25% of that person’s first year's 
total compensation package. 
 
 
 
Initialed for Client: __________________   Initialed for MRI: ______________ 
Date: ____________________________   Date: _______________________ 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Professional Services Agreement – Assessing Services  Page 5 
City of Auburn, Maine 
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. 
June 2014 



MAINE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 
ASSESSOR MANUAL 

CHAPTER 1 
PAGE 4 

 
Creation, Qualification, and 

Liability of Assessors 
 
 

Creation, Qualification, and Liability of Assessors 
 

Generally 
 
The local property tax is the “life blood” of Maine municipalities. It is absolutely 
essential to the legal assessment and collection of property taxes that the municipality’s 
tax assessor(s) be properly placed in office. 
 
Before an assessor can make a valid assessment or take any other legal action, the 
assessor must be legally elected or appointed and sworn into office. A tax assessed by a 
“de facto” assessor (one who does not meet these requirements) is void and uncollectible, 
even if the assessor who is invalidly elected or appointed or is not sworn into office is 
only one member of a board of assessors. Inhabitants of Springfield v. Butterfield, 98 Me. 
155, 56 A.581 (1903); Inhabitants of Otisfield v. Scribner, 129 Me. 311, 151 A.670 
(1930).  
 
The election, appointment, duties and conduct of assessors in towns and cities are 
governed by Titles 30-A and 36 of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated. According to 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 2526, a board of assessors in Maine cannot consist of fewer than three 
people, although cities and towns may choose to have a single assessor instead of a 
board. As a result of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 7006, which states that laws relating to election, 
appointment, qualification, duties, powers, compensation, liabilities and penalties for 
official neglect and misconduct of town officials apply to plantations and their officers 
except when otherwise provided, plantation assessors generally are governed by the same 
laws that apply to assessors in towns. 
 
A few municipalities in Maine have been designated as “primary assessing areas.” 36 
M.R.S.A. § 303. 
 



Establishing the Board or Single Assessor 
 
In Cities. Unless the city charter provides otherwise, the assessors of cities and their 
assistants shall be chosen on the second Monday in March each year. Their term of office 
is one year from the election date, and they continue in office until a successor is chosen 
and qualified in their place. 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2552. City of Bath v. Reed, 78 Me. 276, 4 
A.688 (1886); State v. Weeks, 67 Me. 60, 63 (1877). The municipal officers of a city may 
authorize the assessors to appoint additional assistant assessors in addition to the number 
of assistant assessors elected or appointed under the provisions of any city charter. 
However, the employment of those additional assistant assessors may not extend beyond 
the end of the municipal year during which they were appointed. 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2552. 
 
Generally, the provisions of the city’s charter govern the election and qualification of 
assessors of cities. Notwithstanding the provisions of any city charter to the contrary, a 
city council may by ordinance provide for a single assessor whose powers and duties 
shall be the same as for towns, and who shall be appointed for a term not exceeding five 
years. 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2552. 
 
 
 
 

MAINE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 
MUNICIPAL OFFICERS MANUAL  

PAGE 67 
ASSESSOR 

 
 
ASSESSORS 
A municipality may vote to have a board of three, five, or seven elected assessors or a 
single, State-certified assessor (36 M.R.S.A. § 327) appointed by the municipal officers (30- 
A M.R.S.A. § 2526 (5)). If a municipality has not created a board of assessors or single 
assessor, the municipal officers shall be the assessors (36 M.R.S.A. § 703). Also, where a 
municipality has created a board of assessors but has not elected a full board, the municipal 
officers shall serve as the board of assessors (30-A M.R.S.A. § 2526 (5)(C)). Historically, 
and in many of Maine’s municipalities today, the municipal officers also serve as the board 
of assessors. 
For many boards of municipal officers who undertake the entire assessing function, the 
assessing chore is by far the most time-consuming task associated with being a municipal 
officer. A relatively recent trend in even the smallest towns is to contract out the appraising 
work to a professional property value appraiser, commonly called an “assessors’ agent.” 
This almost always is done when it comes time for the municipality to perform a 
revaluation, and many municipalities continue with a professional appraiser for an annual 



maintenance service, particularly for new property valuations. It is important to remember 
that the professional land appraiser employed by the municipality for the purpose of 
appraising property values is not the municipality’s assessor unless the town has followed 
the statutory procedures to change from a board of assessors to a single assessor and the 
municipal officers have expressly appointed someone to that position (30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 2526). The private appraiser under contract only provides information to the assessors 
which they may or may not use in determining the actual assessment and levy of the 
property tax. For this reason, it is important for the municipal officers to understand the 
methods used by the appraiser if they are also the assessors. 
68 
As previously noted, the municipal officers (not in their capacity as assessors) have power 
under 36 M.R.S.A. § 841 (1) and (2) to grant property tax abatements based on a legal or 
constitutional challenge to an assessment, poverty, or infirmity, or on the uncollectability of 
the tax after two years. For more information about the abatement proceedings, see MMA’s 
Assessors Manual and MMA’s “Poverty Tax Abatement” Information Packet. 
A variety of other assessing issues are covered in detail in MMA’s Assessors Manual, as 
well as in materials available from the Maine Revenue Services’ Property Tax Division. See 
Appendix 5 for “Demystifying Assessing,” Maine Townsman, February 1996, and other 
related materials. 



Generated
12.4.2013   |  1

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 36: TAXATION

Chapter 102: PROPERTY TAX ADMINISTRATION

§327. MINIMUM ASSESSING STANDARDS
All municipalities whether they choose to remain as single municipal assessing units or choose to be

designated as a primary assessing area, either as a primary single unit or a member of a primary district, shall
achieve the following minimum assessing standards: [1975, c. 545, §13 (NEW).]

1. Minimum assessment ratios.  A 50% minimum assessment ratio by 1977; a 60% minimum
assessment ratio by 1978; and a 70% minimum assessment ratio by 1979 and thereafter. Notwithstanding
this subsection, a municipality should not have an assessment ratio at an amount greater than 110% of its just
value;

[ 1993, c. 249, §1 (AMD);  1993, c. 249, §2 (AFF) .]

2. Maximum rating of assessment.  A maximum rating of assessment quality of 30 by 1977; a
maximum rating of assessment quality of 25 by 1978; a maximum rating of assessment quality of 20 by 1979
and thereafter;

[ 1975, c. 545, §13 (NEW) .]

3. Employment of assessor.  Any municipal assessing unit may employ a part-time, non-certified
assessor or contract with a firm or organization that provides assessing services; when any municipal
assessing unit or primary assessing area employs a full-time, professional assessor, this assessor must be
certified by the Bureau of Revenue Services as a professionally trained assessor. The bureau shall publish, for
the information of the municipalities, a listing of certified assessors and assessing firms or organizations.

[ 2001, c. 583, §10 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1975, c. 545, §13 (NEW).  1993, c. 249, §1 (AMD).  1993, c. 249, §2
(AFF).  1997, c. 526, §14 (AMD).  2001, c. 583, §10 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the First Special Session of the 126th Maine Legislature and is current through October 9, 2013. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.











































CITY OF AUBURN 
COMPARATIVE BUDGET & EXPENDITURE REQUEST 

FY 2007 FY 2008 

FY 2007 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2008 FY 2008 FY 2008 FY 2008 
Original Projected Dept City Mgr Council $ Diff % Diff 

Line Code & Description Budget Actual Request Request Adopted 

0135- ASSESSING SERVICES 

051100 REGULAR SALARIES 236,051 242,998 248,055 248,055 248,055 12,004 5.09% 

051118 LONGEVITY BONUS 0 0 800 800 800 800 0.00% 

053300 TRAINING & TUITION 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,100 2,1 00 -200 -8.70% 

053400 PS - GEN/PROFESSIONAL 2,000 2,000 700 700 700 -1 ,300 -65.00% 

053414 PS · RECORDING FEE 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,800 1,800 -150 -7.69% 

054302 REPAIRS- VEHICLES 1,000 1,000 500 0 0 -1,000 -100.00% 

055320 COMM - TELEPHONE 400 300 440 440 440 40 10.00% 

055500 REPORTS, PRINTING, & BINDING 270 232 480 280 280 10 3.70% 

055810 TRAVEL- MILEAGE 200 214 200 200 200 0 0.00% 

056000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500 500 500 500 500 0 0.00% 

056048 MV SUP - GAS & OIL 500 300 500 500 500 0 0.00% 

057320 CIP-VEHICLES 0 0 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0.00% 

058100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 900 940 2,200 2,200 2,200 1,300 144.44% 

ASSESSING SERVICES TOTALS 246,071 252,734 278,625 267,575 267,575 21,504 8.74% 

Page 7 of 39 

~~•-•-••'~l~·••• j -• .. 'l•' ' "''-"0'•~···-•·•~•'/0•000o0"HP•-.. , ,,,.,_,_,,,, ....... ~-· .. ,o-••• •A ''••- ••• ••-••••• ·---- ._,,,, _.,,·-·-r·,O~'-'"'"" _ _ , ... ~,-·••• •·•·.- ·,···' 0 ' '•"••~·-r--··~·"•· ··~-~· 0 ·••·---- Oo-o,o• o••o• - o.•o •o-•o •, ' -~·-•••••••• ' ••••••••••••••••• .. --···•-••"'-• ''' ' ' ''""• •"•'•••' ' ••'•' •'''"" ... ' · •- • •• o ••O •o• ··o O· O' O' OOO' ' -" • ' A ''• ''' '''' •·•·· · •·''· • ••·--·---••• •• - • • - . - · - ··-,· ·-·· · ~· .. ··· 



9:30 AM 6/17/2014

2

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Administration
Assessing 172,277 173,245 191,970 177,320 177,320 5,043 2.93%
City Clerk 162,045 171,080 194,214 170,243 164,593 2,548 1.57%
City Manager 238,903 237,313 319,505 270,750 280,750 41,847 17.52%
Economic Development 318,933 119,705 385,755 359,500 359,500 40,567 12.72%
Finance 405,976 409,215 418,675 428,315 427,815 21,839 5.38%
Human Resources 139,566 137,778 139,578 139,578 139,578 12 0.01%
ICT 395,350 374,853 422,979 418,329 413,829 18,479 4.67%
Legal Services 100,000 80,000 85,000 65,000 65,000 (35,000) -35.00%
Mayor & Council 71,079 72,065 78,532 78,532 78,532 7,453 10.49%

Total Administration 2,004,129 1,775,254 2,236,208 2,107,567 2,106,917 102,788 5.13%

Community Services
Health & Social Services
  Administration 83,557 83,557 86,972 86,972 86,972 3,415 4.09%
  Assistance 105,982 161,684 144,381 144,381 105,982 0 0.00%
Planning & Permitting 775,230 795,030 915,544 804,494 804,494 29,264 3.77%
Public Library 927,237 927,237 942,407 941,192 941,192 13,955 1.51%

Total Community Services 1,892,006 1,967,508 2,089,304 1,977,039 1,938,640 46,634 2.46%

Fiscal Services
Debt Service 6,321,584 6,301,531 6,263,936 6,263,936 6,263,936 (57,648) -0.91%
Emergency Reserve 375,289 0 375,289 375,289 375,289 0 0.00%
Facilities 715,667 678,552 729,870 698,335 698,335 (17,332) -2.42%
Transfer to TIF 2,555,723 2,584,032 2,584,032 2,584,032 2,584,032 28,309 1.11%
Fringe Benefits 4,397,585 4,500,000 4,945,117 4,945,117 4,915,117 517,532 11.77%
Workers' Compensation 431,446 415,000 468,081 468,081 468,081 36,635 8.49%

Total Fiscal Services 14,797,294 14,479,115 15,366,325 15,334,790 15,304,790 507,496 3.43%

Public Safety
Fire 4,024,789 4,113,156 4,300,126 4,120,633 4,047,633 22,844 0.57%
Fire EMS Transport 0 0 0 0 635,468 635,468 0.00%
Police 3,589,583 3,324,191 3,958,119 3,884,183 3,738,108 148,525 4.14%

Total Public Safety 7,614,372 7,437,347 8,258,245 8,004,816 8,421,209 806,837 10.60%

Public Services
Public Services 5,577,954 5,521,226 5,890,448 5,780,179 5,785,879 207,925 3.73%
Water & Sewer 558,835 558,835 599,013 599,013 599,013 40,178 7.19%

Total Public Works 6,136,789 6,080,061 6,489,461 6,379,192 6,384,892 248,103 4.04%
Capital Improvement Projects
City Clerk (see Clerk Budget) 18,500 0 0 0 (18,500) -100.00%
Engineering-Paving 100,000 0 0 0 0.00%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS



1

Howard Kroll

From: Clint Deschene
Sent: Friday, September 12, 2014 11:37 AM
To: Howard Kroll
Subject: FW: Assessing
Attachments: Contract Auburn ME Assessing Dept Study REVISED FINAL 07-31-14.doc

 
 
Clinton Deschene 
Auburn City Manager 
(207)333‐6601 ext. 1212 
 
Please be advised that email communications sent to or received from City employees are subject to the Freedom of Access Act and may become part of public 
record or shared with the media. 
 

From: Don Jutton [mailto:djutton@mrigov.com]  
Sent: Friday, August 22, 2014 4:09 PM 
To: Clint Deschene; Ed Barrett (ebarrett@lewistonmaine.gov) 
Cc: Joe Lessard; Christian Pearsall 
Subject: Assessing 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
As discussed on Wednesday, MRI has been retained by Auburn to review the organizational and operational structure 
for Tax Assessing office of the City and to help identify and evaluate alternative approaches that might result in greater 
efficiency  and / or cost avoidance for the long term. In light of the potential retirements that are anticipated in the 
Lewiston Assessing office in the near term it might be an opportune to expand the scope of study to incorporate a 
detailed assessment of the Lewiston Assessing operation with the intent of identifying and evaluating a consolidated 
operating model that could be mutually beneficial. We can expand and modify the scope to include Lewiston’s operation 
for an additional $4000 which will result in a report for a consolidated approach as well as observations and 
recommendations focused on each operation independently to help inform a discussion of the consolidated model and 
for guidance with other decisions if such a model is not politically viable. 
 
I’ve attached the Auburn Agreement for easy access and review. 
 
Let me know if you have questions or need clarification.       
 
Best 
 
Don Jutton 
Municipal Resources 
603‐279‐0352 X 305 
Cell: 603‐387‐9729  
 
 



City Council 
Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  Council Meeting Date: 09/22/2014  
 
  Subject: Executive Session  
 

Information: Discussion regarding Labor Negotiations, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(D). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 
405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 
disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 
investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 
reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 
prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 
may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 
to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 
the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 
of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 
pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
  
 
Subject: Resolution to apply for Recreational Trails Grant-Barker Mill Trail Extension  
 
Information: The Council is being asked to support a resolution to apply for a Recreational Trails Grant to 
extend the Barker Mill Trail along Mill Street down to the intersection at South Main Street.  This trail section 
is part of a larger trail system for Auburn and when completed will connect New Auburn to the Barker Mill 
Trail along the Little Androscoggin River.  Future connections will create a larger loop of trails connecting 
schools, parks and conserved land for the entire community to enjoy. 
 
The proposed project will widen the existing sidewalk from the intersection of Mill and South Main from 4 feet 
to 6 feet, add new fencing, create a new section of trail in front of and connecting to the Barker Mill Arms 
Apartments, and create a parking lot and trailhead at the beginning of the Barker Mill Trail. 
 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: Pro’s-This section of trail will connect New Auburn, residents of the Barker Mill Arms 
Apartment to the Barker Mill Trail. The proposed parking lot/trailhead will add a convenient place for residents 
and visitors to come and utilize the beautiful trail along the Little Androscoggin River. The trail will create an 
opportunity for healthy living, access to natural resources, social interaction and community improvement. The 
trail is part of a larger plan of interconnected trails throughout Auburn and Lewiston.  
Con’s-A portion of the proposed trail is in the area of the Barker Dam penstock, which is leaking. The leaking 
can be mitigated by perforated drain pipes. The City will be required to maintain the trail.  

 
Financial: The project would require a local match (20 %) of $8,547 for a total state award of $34,189.  This is 
a reimbursement grant and the funding for the local match is requested to be included in the City’s 2015-16 
budget.   
 

 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Vote to move the resolution forward for a second reading. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This resolution was presented to Council at their workshop on September 8, 
2014. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolve 09-09222014 
2. Detail of Barker Mill from ALT to GW Plan 
3. Barker Mill Rec Trail Grant Small Map 
4. Barker Trail Extension Estimate 
5. Barker Mill Power Point 
6. Rec Trails Grant Memo   

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Resolve  09-09222014 

Author:   Doug Greene, City Planner 
  
  
  
  

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 
Adam Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 09-09222014 
 

RESOLVED, that  
 
WHEREAS, the Barker Mill Trail is an integral part of a larger trail system in Auburn, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Barker Mill Trail is recommended to be implemented in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan, the 
New Auburn Master Plan, the New Auburn Village Center and Transportation Plan and the Androscoggin 
River Greenway Plan (Androscoggin Land Trust), and 
 
WHEREAS, the Barker Mill Trail is currently incomplete and the construction of the missing component in 
New Auburn will provide additional recreational opportunities, healthy exercise and social benefits to the 
community, and  
 
WHEREAS, the State of Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry, Bureau of Parks and 
Lands has opened a new round of the Recreational Trails Grant Program. 
 
THEREFORE, the Auburn City Council hereby authorizes the Department of Planning and Development to 
apply for the Recreational Trail Development Grant from the Bureau of Parks and Lands for the construction 
of the Barker Mill Trail Extension. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 







9/17/2014

Barker Mill Trail Extension Estimate*
* Preliminary cost estimate

Section 1: Main Street to Barker Arms entrance

Length (ft) 385

Width (ft) 6

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

Common Excavation 29 CY $35 $998

Type A Gravel 43 CY $50 $2,139

Hot Mix Asphalt 28 TON $150 $4,235

Loam & Seed 257 SY $10 $2,567

$9,939

Replace existing Fencing

Length (ft) 136

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

4' x 8' panels 17 $230 $3,910

3" x 3 " x 7' posts 18 $80 $1,440

Installation $2,675

$8,025

Section 2: Barker Arms entrance to Dam control entrance

Length (ft) 310

Width (ft) 6

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

Common Excavation 80 CY $15 $1,206

Type A Gravel 121 CY $30 $3,617

Hot Mix Asphalt 23 TON $150 $3,410

Loam & Seed 207 SY $10 $2,067

$10,300

River View/ Seating Area

300 s.f. 

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

Common Excvation 5 CY $15 $75

Type A Gravel 10 CY $30 $300

Hot Mix Asphalt 3 TON $150 $450

Eight foot Bench 2 $600 $1,200

w/ Installation $600

$2,625

1



9/17/2014

Section 3: Proposed Trailhead Area

Dam control entrance improvement

Length (ft) 30

Width (ft) 20

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

Common Excavation 8 CY $35 $272

Type A Gravel 12 CY $50 $583

Hot Mix Asphalt 7 TON $150 $1,100

$1,956

Dam control parking area improvement

Length (ft) 100

Width (ft) 20

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

Common Excavation 26 CY $35 $907

Type A Gravel 39 CY $50 $1,944

$2,851

Trailhead improvement

Length (ft) 20

Width (ft) 10

Item Quantity U/M Unit Price Total

Common Excavation 5 CY $75 $389

Type A Gravel 8 CY $100 $778

Hot Mix Asphalt 2 TON $200 $489

Sign $1,500

$3,156

Total $38,852

10% Contingency $3,885

Grand Total $42,737

State Share 80% $34,189.60

Local Share 20% $8,547.40

2



Request to Council  to approve  
Resolution to Submit Grant 

Application



The New Auburn Little Andy Connector Proposal from 2013. 

Area of Barker Mill Trail Extension 



The Barker Mill Trail is part of an overall trail plan  
for Auburn and the New Auburn Area. Proposed “loop” trail system connecting parks, trails, schools and open space. 









Widen sidewalk to 6 feet 



Widen sidewalk to 6 feet 

Replace Fence 



Sitting area with 
benches to view river. 



Clear limbs for sitting area 
view of Little Andy. 



Widen trail to 6 feet 

Add Crosswalk striping 



Widen trail to 6 feet 

Divert or fix Penstock leak 



New trail construction 



Fix Trail Connection to Barker 
Mill Arms Apartments. 



New Trail 

Parking Area and Beginning 
of Barker Mill Trail 



Trail extension connects to 
Barker Mill Trail here. 

Trailhead and Parking Area 



Budget-  Maximum award is $35,000 from State 
 plus 20% ($8,750) local match = $43,750 total maximum award  
  
 Preliminary Budget is  $38,852 
 with 10% contingency  $  3,885 
 TOTAL PROPOSED   $42,737 
 
 STATE SHARE   (80%) - $34,189.60 
 LOCAL SHARE  (20%) - $   8,547.40 
 TOTAL GRANT-  $42,737.00 
 
 
Timeframe-  Grant is due November 14, 2014 
 Anticipated construction time- 1 month  (Spring 2015) 
       Work must be completed in 2 years. 
        
   

Grant Summary 

















City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    August 2014 Financial Report 

DATE:  September 12, 2013 

 
The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s August financial 
report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by the 
School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt to 
explain any variances for the School Department. 
 
The City has completed its second month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking 
purposes, revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 16.66% of the annual budget.  
However, not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items 
can vary based upon cyclical activity.    
 
Balance Sheet 
 
The following are significant variances from July: 
 

A. Taxes Receivable-Current and Deferred Revenue have both increased due to the tax 
commitment being posted in August. These two accounts are directly related to each other. 

 
Revenues 
 
Revenues, for the City, collected through August 31st were $2,065,170, or 3.8%, of the budget, which 
is lower than last year at this time by 0.1%. The accounts listed below are noteworthy. 

 
A. Excise taxes of $601,991-up $7,436 over last year. 

 

 



 
 
 

 2 

B. State Revenue Sharing for the month of August is 12.6% or $207,789. The city received 
$127,350 this month compared to $111,311 FY14. Percentage of budget this year is 
8.16% less than last year at the end of August. 
 

C. Property Taxes for August are $304,984 as compared to $252,606 last year.  
 

Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through August 31st were $6,501,597, or 17.17%, of the budget as compared to 
last year at $8,657,022, or 23.95%.  Noteworthy variances are: 
 

A. Debt Service is zero this year compared to $6,321,584. Last year these payments were 
posted in August. 

B. County Tax is at $2,046,879. Last year County tax was zero. Due to a timing difference, 
this year the check was cut in August. 

 
Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of August 31st with a comparison to July 31st.  
Currently the City’s funds are earning an average interest rate of .19%, which is the same as last July.   
 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 

         
          
 Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED AUDITED
August 31 July 31 Increase JUNE 30

2014 2014 (Decrease) 2013
ASSETS

CASH 3,027,169$           3,398,415$         (371,245)$             15,074,324$       
RECEIVABLES -                        
  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 827,557                1,249,695           (422,138)               1,218,554           
  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 41,281,111           (2,052)                 41,283,163           107,929              
  DELINQUENT TAXES 663,697                663,511              186                       486,160              
  TAX LIENS 1,087,927             1,249,707           (161,780)               1,415,461           
  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 9,205,125             8,892,849           312,276                470,312              

 
TOTAL ASSETS 56,092,587$         15,452,124$       40,640,463$         18,772,740$       

 
 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (2,411,627)$          (865,602)$           (1,546,025)$          (670,227)$           
PAYROLL LIABILITIES (276,445)               (568,715)             292,270                (501)                    
ACCRUED PAYROLL (895,756)               (2,099,680)          1,203,924             (2,274,075)          
STATE FEES PAYABLE (52,656)                 (23,277)               (29,378)                 -                      
ESCROWED AMOUNTS (43,526)                 (43,526)               -                        (41,865)               
DEFERRED REVENUE (42,720,213)          (1,903,868)          (40,816,345)          (1,822,839)          

 
     TOTAL LIABILITIES (46,400,223)$        (5,504,669)$        (40,895,553)$        (4,809,507)$        

 
FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED (8,601,412)$          (8,856,502)$        255,090$              (12,378,441)$      
FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED FOR  
     WORKERS COMP & UNEMPLOYMENT 776,017                776,017              -                        684,766              

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED (1,866,970)            (1,866,970)          -                        (2,269,558)          
 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (9,692,365)$          (9,947,455)$        255,090$              (13,963,233)$      
 

  
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (56,092,587)$        (15,452,124)$      (40,640,463)$        (18,772,740)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of August 2014, July 2014, and June 2013 



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE
THROUGH August 31, 2014 VS August 31, 2013 

ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2015 REVENUES % OF FY 2014 REVENUES % OF  

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU AUG 2014 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2013 BUDGET VARIANCE
TAXES
  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 43,055,996$           304,984$           0.71% 42,844,641$     252,606$           0.59% 52,378$            
  PRIOR YEAR REVENUE -$                        304,840$            -$                 217,927  86,913$            
  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 495,000$                383,752$           77.53% 482,575$          371,573$           77.00% 12,179$            
  ALLOWANCE FOR ABATEMENT -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE TAXES -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  EXCISE 3,185,000$             601,991$           18.90% 3,068,500$       594,555$           19.38% 7,436$              
  PENALTIES & INTEREST 145,000$                16,721$             11.53% 140,000$          13,748$             9.82% 2,973$              

     TOTAL TAXES 46,880,996$           1,612,288$        3.44% 46,535,716$     1,450,409$        3.12% 161,879$          
  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   
  BUSINESS 48,300$                  7,460$               15.45% 47,300$            7,110$               15.03% 350$                 
  NON-BUSINESS 339,300$                77,261$             22.77% 338,300$          93,733$             27.71% (16,472)$          

     TOTAL LICENSES 387,600$                84,721$             21.86% 385,600$          100,843$           26.15% (16,122)$          
  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   
  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 440,000$                -$                   0.00% 440,000$          -$                       0.00% -$                 
  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,649,470$             207,789$           12.60% 1,649,470$       342,494$           20.76% (134,705)$        
  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 70,000$                  4,680$               6.69% 53,000$            -$                       0.00% 4,680$              
  OTHER STATE AID 22,000$                  -$                   0.00% 22,000$            -$                       0.00% -$                 
  CITY OF LEWISTON 155,000$                -$                   0.00% 155,000$          -$                       0.00% -$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,336,470$             212,469$           9.09% 2,319,470$       342,494$           14.77% (130,025)$        

  
CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 132,040$                18,430$             13.96% 140,240$          13,570$             9.68% 4,860$              
  PUBLIC SAFETY 485,703$                59,432$             12.24% 366,152$          19,317$             5.28% 40,115$            
  EMS AGREEMENT 987,551$                -$                   0.00% 100,000$          16,667$             16.67% (16,667)$          

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,605,294$             77,861$             4.85% 606,392$          49,554$             8.17% 28,307$            
  

FINES   
  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 26,000$                  6,561$               25.24% 40,000$            3,240$               8.10% 3,321$              

   
MISCELLANEOUS    
  INVESTMENT INCOME 10,000$                  52$                    0.52% 20,000$            63$                    0.32% (11)$                 
  INTEREST-BOND PROCEEDS 2,000$                    -$                   0.00% 2,000$              -$                       0.00% -$                 
  RENTS 122,000$                -$                   0.00% 122,000$          -$                       0.00% -$                 
  UNCLASSIFIED 20,000$                  26,096$             130.48% 17,500$            37,223$             212.70% (11,127)$          
  SALE OF RECYCLABLES -$                        -$                    4,800$              -$                       0.00% -$                 
  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        10,072$              -$                 10,478$              (407)$               
  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  500$                  2.50% 20,000$            6,760$               33.80% (6,260)$            
  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  MMWAC HOST FEES 206,000$                34,299$             16.65% 204,000$          33,651$             16.50% 648$                 
  9-1-1 DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSEMENT -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                       0.00% -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: TIF 500,000$                -$                   0.00% 520,000$          -$                       0.00% -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: POLICE 20,000$                  0.00% -$                 -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: PARKING PROGRAM 55,000$                  0.00% -$                 -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: PD DRUG MONEY 45,000$                  0.00% -$                 -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: REC SPEC REVENUE 41,720$                  0.00% -$                 -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: SPECIAL REVENUE 290,000$                0.00% -$                 -$                 
  ENERGY EFFICIENCY -$                        -$                    2,000$              279$                  13.95% (279)$               
  CDBG 58,000$                  -$                   0.00% 58,000$            -$                       0.00% -$                 
  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 37,500$                  251$                  0.67% 37,500$            3,757$               10.02% (3,506)$            
  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 1,350,000$             -$                   0.00% 1,350,000$       -$                       0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,777,220$             71,270$             2.57% 2,357,800$       92,211$             3.91% (20,941)$          
-$                       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 54,013,580$           2,065,170$        3.82% 52,244,978$     2,038,751$        3.90% 26,419$            

SCHOOL REVENUES
  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 20,411,239$           1,607,611$        7.88% 17,942,071$     1,581,335$        8.81% 26,276$            
  EDUCATION 774,572$                59,850$             7.73% 1,358,724$       30,340$             2.23% 29,510$            
  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 906,882$                -$                   0.00% 855,251$          -$                       0.00% -$                 

TOTAL SCHOOL 22,092,693$           1,667,461$        7.55% 20,156,046$     1,611,675$        8.00% 55,786$            

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 76,106,273$           3,732,631$        4.90% 72,401,024$     3,650,426$        5.04% 82,205$            

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



Unaudited  Unaudited  
FY 2015 EXP % OF FY 2014 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU AUG 2014 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2013 BUDGET VARIANCE
ADMINISTRATION  
   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 78,532$                20,269$              25.81% 71,079$          11,376$              16.00% 8,893$          
   CITY MANAGER 280,750$              42,852$              15.26% 238,903$        36,518$              15.29% 6,334$          
   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 359,500$              48,211$              13.41% 318,933$        83,893$              26.30% (35,682)$       
   ASSESSING SERVICES 177,320$              31,506$              17.77% 172,277$        26,349$              15.29% 5,157$          
   CITY CLERK 164,593$              21,357$              12.98% 162,045$        21,772$              13.44% (415)$            
   FINANCIAL SERVICES 427,815$              62,769$              14.67% 405,976$        59,498$              14.66% 3,271$          
   HUMAN RESOURCES 139,578$              19,718$              14.13% 139,566$        19,126$              13.70% 592$             
   INFORMATION COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY 413,829$              79,382$              19.18% 395,350$        79,899$              20.21% (517)$            
   LEGAL SERVICES 65,000$                1,442$                2.22% 100,000$        -$                        0.00% 1,442$          

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,106,917$           327,506$            15.54% 2,004,129$     338,431$            16.89% (10,925)$       

COMMUNITY SERVICES
   PLANNING & PERMITTING 902,494$              118,202$            13.10% 775,230$        110,521$            14.26% 7,681$          
   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 192,954$              25,659$              13.30% 189,539$        36,921$              19.48% (11,262)$       
   PUBLIC LIBRARY 960,692$              238,174$            24.79% 946,737$        157,717$            16.66% 80,457$        

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 2,056,140$           382,035$            18.58% 2,759,028$     305,159$            11.06% 76,876$        
 

FISCAL SERVICES
   DEBT SERVICE 6,263,936$           -$                        0.00% 6,321,584$     4,708,560$         74.48% (4,708,560)$  
   FACILITIES 698,335$              147,571$            21.13% 715,667$        178,642$            24.96% (31,071)$       
   WORKERS COMPENSATION 468,081$              -$                        0.00% 431,446$        -$                        0.00% -$                  
   WAGES & BENEFITS 4,737,117$           801,361$            16.92% 4,397,585$     844,522$            19.20% (43,161)$       
   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 375,289$              -$                        0.00% 375,289$        -$                        0.00% -$                  

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 12,542,758$         948,932$            7.57% 12,241,571$   5,731,724$         46.82% (4,782,792)$  

PUBLIC SAFETY
   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,057,633$           674,785$            16.63% 4,024,789$     618,338$            15.36% 56,447$        
   FIRE EMS 635,468$              329,356$            51.83%  329,356$      
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 3,738,108$           520,352$            13.92% 3,589,583$     487,788$            13.59% 32,564$        

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 8,431,209$           1,524,493$         18.08% 7,614,372$     1,106,126$         14.53% 418,367$      

PUBLIC WORKS
   PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5,806,379$           773,869$            13.33% 5,577,954$     689,779$            12.37% 84,090$        
   WATER AND SEWER 599,013$              146,628$            24.48% 558,835$        135,231$            24.20% 11,397$        

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 6,405,392$           920,497$            14.37% 5,289,267$     825,010$            15.60% 95,487$        

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS
   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 105,000$              26,250$              25.00% 105,000$        52,500$              50.00% (26,250)$       
   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,067,249$           325,005$            30.45% 1,036,409$     260,725$            25.16% 64,280$        
   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 235,373$              -$                        0.00% 235,496$        -$                        0.00% -$                  
   LAEGC-ECONOMIC COUNCIL -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                         -$                  
   LA ARTS 17,000$                -$                        0.00% -$                   -$                         -$                  
   TAX SHARING 270,000$              -$                        0.00% 270,000$        37,347$              13.83% (37,347)$       

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,694,622$           351,255$            20.73% 1,646,905$     350,572$            21.29% 683$             

COUNTY TAX 2,046,880$           2,046,879$         100.00% 2,029,513$     -$                        0.00% 2,046,879$   
TIF (10108058-580000) 2,584,032$           -$                        0.00% 2,555,723$     -$                        0.00% -$                  
OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                        0.00% -$                  

-$                  
TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 37,867,950$         6,501,597$         17.17% 36,140,508$   8,657,022$         23.95% (2,155,425)$  

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 38,241,323$         1,314,883$         3.44% 37,128,028$   1,058,868$         2.85% 256,015$      
  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 76,109,273$         7,816,480$         10.27% 73,268,536$   9,715,890$         13.26% (1,899,410)$  

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH August 31, 2014 VS August 31, 2013



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
INVESTMENT SCHEDULE

AS OF August 31, 2014

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST WEIGHTED
INVESTMENT FUND August 31, 2014 July 31, 2014 RATE AVG YIELD

BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1242924 GENERAL FUND 55,425.13$                   55,418.07$                   0.15%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745910 GF-WORKERS COMP 49,287.57$                   49,284.22$                   0.08%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745944 GF-UNEMPLOYMENT 67,012.66$                   67,004.12$                   0.15%
BANKNORTH CD 7033 GF-UNEMPLOYMENT 102,404.84$                 102,404.84$                 0.15%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1809302 SPECIAL REVENUE 52,645.00$                   52,638.29$                   0.15%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745902 SR-PERMIT PARKING 198,321.69$                 198,296.43$                 0.15%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745895 SR-TIF 1,119,681.97$              1,119,539.34$              0.15%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1746819 CAPITAL PROJECTS 4,777,191.68$              11,776,180.47$            0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745928 ICE ARENA 249,708.41$                 249,676.60$                 0.15%

GRAND TOTAL 6,671,678.95$              13,670,442.38$            0.19%



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
To: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for August 31, 2014  
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities for the Ingersoll Arena  
and the Norway Savings Bank Arena as of August 31, 2014.  
 
INGERSOLL ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of August 2014 the total current assets of Ingersoll were $244,715. These consisted of cash 
and cash equivalents of $249,677, and an interfund payable of $4,962, which means that Ingersoll owes 
the General Fund $4,962, so net cash available to Ingersoll is $239,753 at the end of August.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Ingersoll’s noncurrent assets are the building, equipment and any building and land improvements, less 
depreciation. There will be an adjustment to the equipment, since some of this has been transferred to 
Norway Savings Bank Arena. The total value of the noncurrent assets as of August 31, 2014 were 
$547,423. 
 
Liabilities: 
Ingersoll had no liabilities as of August 31, 2014.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
There have been no operating revenues for Ingersoll Arena in August 2014.  
 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Arena through August 2014, were $1,764. These expenses are for 
utilities and minor repairs. 
 
As of August 2014 Ingersoll Arena has an operating loss of $1,764. 
 
As of August 31, 2014 Ingersoll Arena has a decrease in net assets of $1,764. 
 
 
 
 



 2 

NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of August 2014 the total current assets of Norway Savings Bank Arena were $46,061. 
These consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $91,281, accounts receivable of $430 and an interfund 
payable of $45,650, which means that Norway owes the General Fund $45,650 at the end of August.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Norway’s noncurrent assets are equipment that was purchased, less depreciation (depreciation is 
posted at year end). There was an adjustment to the equipment to account for equipment that was 
transferred from Ingersoll Arena. The total value of the noncurrent assets as of August 31, 2014 were 
$239,332. 
 
Liabilities: 
Norway Arena had accounts payable of $45,012 as of August 31, 2014.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Norway Arena through August 2014 are $109,439. This revenue comes from 
the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public skating 
and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Norway Arena through August 2014 were $220,816. These expenses include 
personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance. July 1st Norway began to 
pay the monthly rent payment on the arena of $42,207 to Slap Shot LLC. The September rent payment 
was posted in August in order to have the check available for September 1st. 
 
As of August 2014 Norway Arena has an operating loss of $111,377. 
 
As of August 31, 2014 Norway Arena has a decrease in net assets of $111,377. 
 
 
 



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
August 31, 2014 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Ingersoll Norway
Savings Combined

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 249,677$        91,281$        340,958$         
Interfund receivables (4,962)$           (45,650)$       (50,612)           
Accounts receivable -                      430               430                  

Total current assets 244,715          46,061          290,776           
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 18,584            35,905          54,489             
Equipment 672,279          285,813        958,092           
Land improvements 718,311          718,311           
     Less accumulated depreciation (861,751)         (82,386)         (944,137)         

Total noncurrent assets 547,423          239,332        786,755           
Total assets 792,138          285,393        1,077,531        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 45,012$        45,012             
Total liabilities -                      45,012          45,012             

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 547,423$        239,332$      786,755           
Unrestricted 244,715$        1,049$          245,764           

Total net assets 792,138$        240,381$      1,032,519$      



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 August 31, 2014 

Norway
Ingersoll Savings
Ice Arena Arena Total

Operating revenues:
Charges for services -$                   109,439$       109,439$          

Operating expenses:
Personnel -                     38,715            38,715              
Supplies -                     10,142            10,142              
Utilities 1,488            32,979            34,467              
Repairs and maintenance 276                2,090              2,366                
Rent 126,621          126,621            
Depreciation -                     -                       -                         
Capital expenses -                       -                         
Other expenses -                     10,269            10,269              

Total operating expenses 1,764            220,816          222,580            

Operating  gain (loss) (1,764)           (111,377)        (113,141)          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                     -                       -                         
Interest expense (debt service) -                     -                       -                         

Total nonoperating expense -                     -                       -                         

Gain before transfer (1,764)           (111,377)        (113,141)          

Transfers out -                     -                       

Change in net assets (1,764)           (111,377)        (113,141)          

Total net assets, July 1 793,902        351,758          1,145,660        

Total net assets, August 31, 2014 792,138$      240,381$       1,032,519$      



Phillip L. Crowell 
Chief  of  Police 
 
Jason D. Moen 
Deputy Chief 
 
Rita P. Beaudry 
Executive Assistant 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: Clint Deschene, City Manager 

From: Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

Date: August 27, 2014 

Re: September 22, 2014 - City Council Meeting – Badge Pinning 

Ceremony 

At the September 22, 2014 City Council meeting, I would like to officially pin the badges 
of  our newest Auburn Police Department officers as well as recognize those officers who 
have been promoted during the last year.  The officers include:  

 
MCJA 

GRADUATION NEW HIRE PROMOTION 

 
   Officer Katherine D. Avery 12/20/2013 

  
Officer David K. Brown 

 

12/12/2013 - 
Lateral from 

Sabattus 
 Officer Joseph M. Correia 12/20/2013 

  Officer Nicholas J. Kyllonen 12/20/2013 
  Officer Krista M. Lee 5/28/2013 
  Officer Joseph T. Miville 12/20/2013 
  

Officer Gregory S. Pealatere 

 

1/9/2014 - Lateral 
from Alaska 

 
Lieutenant Laurie L. Woodhead 

  

Promotion to 
Lieutenant on 

9/09/2013 

Sergeant Christopher A. Hatfield 

  

Promotion to Sergeant 
on 9/10/2013 

Corporal Eric J. Bell 

  

Promotion to Corporal 
on 9/10/2013 

Corporal Marshall W. McCamish 

  

Promotion to Corporal 
on 9/10/2013 

 
 

Auburn Police Department 
 

6 0  C O U R T  S T R E E T  •  A U B U R N ,  M A I N E  •  0 4 2 1 0  
P H O N E :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 6 6 5 0  •  W W W . A U B U R N P D . C O M  

A D M I N I S T R A T I O N  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 5 •  P A T R O L / R E C O R D S  F A X :  2 0 7 . 3 3 3 . 3 8 5 6  
 



USA – Poland IN-FIRENET Project 

 
The Poland – USA IN-FIRENET Project was initiated more than 10 years ago 
as a one month professional development study visit with fire officer 
candidates from the Main School of the Fire Service (SGSP) in Warsaw, 
Poland. The Main School is the National Fire Service Academy of Poland for 
officer training, similar to our military academies of West Point (US Army) 
or Annapolis (Navy), etc. Graduates of the programs at the Main School 
receive either an undergraduate degree (4 year), or graduate degree (5 
year), in Fire Engineering or Civil Security Protection. The purpose of the 

study visit is to provide some experience of the American fire service or emergency management to 
SGSP officer candidates which they can use as they approach the completion of their education program 
at the school, and when placed in the field after graduation. Officer candidates in the program typically 
have completed all but their final year in the academy. In order to be eligible to participate in the 
program candidates must pass a rigorous English language test and be at the top of their class 
academically. Each year, since inception, 5- 12 cadets have been placed in either career or combination 
US fire departments and emergency management organizations across the country. 

 
The arrangements for the visit are fairly simple since the inception of the program. The Main School 
covers the expense of getting the students to and from the closest international airport to the 
placement department. The placement host department is responsible for housing and meal expenses 
for the student during the one month visit. If the student is housed in a fire station, the cost for the 
month will usually be minimal. The Main School offers to host a representative from the placement 
department, under similar arrangements for a return study visit in Poland, if desired. Reports received 
from each of the participating departments and feedback from the students and the Main School 
indicate that this program continues to be a resounding success. This student visit program continues to 
provide excellent opportunities to help future leaders of the Polish Fire and Emergency Management 
service, in a new democracy, gain some insight on our country, fire departments, fire fighters and 
culture. The program also provides US fire fighters the opportunity to learn more about the Polish Fire 
and Emergency Management services. 

Poland was the first country to break away from the former Soviet Union in the early 1980’s. 
They continue to make tremendous progress over the past 30 years in establishing a democratic form of 
government in the country. The Main School (SGSP) is a “world class” university and the education 
provided to their officer candidates is equal to, or better than, similar programs here in the United 
States. Both Poland and the United States also have a long history of mutual support that goes back to 
their active support of our independence from England in the 1770’s, to the United States being the first 
nation to officially recognize Poland after their break from the Soviet Union.  

For additional information or to volunteer to be a host fire department, please contact: 

Chief Bill Peterson (Ret.) 
USA-Poland INFIRENET Coordinator 
wppfdtx@aol.com 
(407) 201-8933 

 

mailto:wppfdtx@aol.com






OFFICE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 

Recognizing Cadet Officer Norbert Janik of the Main School of the Fire Service located in 
Warsaw Poland for his internship with the Auburn Fire Department 

 
WHEREAS, Cadet Officer Janik of the Main Fire School of Warsaw Poland, through a highly 
competitive process, has earned the opportunity to intern with the Auburn Fire Department for the 
month of September, 2014 as sponsored by the International Fire and Rescue Network; 

WHEREAS, Cadet Officer Janik has shown a willingness and desire to participate in the activities of the 
Auburn Fire Department and learn about and experience the culture and customs of the City of 
Auburn and the State of Maine and; 

WHEREAS, Cadet Officer Janik will be visiting with the fire departments in Poland, Lewiston, Portland 
and Boston Massachusetts as a part of his internship and exposure to the fire service in these United 
States of America, and; 

WHERAS, Cadet Officer Janik is one of five other such Cadet Officers interning in fire departments in 
the states of Colorado, , Illinois, Florida and Texas, and; 

WHERAS, Cadet Officer Janik is only the second such Cadet Officer to be offered an internship by a fire 
department in the State of Maine and the New England region; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Auburn City Council, on behalf of the Citizens of the City of Auburn herewith 
recognizes and welcomes Cadet Officer Norbert Janik to the City of Auburn and the State of Maine! 

            
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto 

 
         Set my hand and caused the Seal of the  
 
         City of Auburn, Maine 
        
         to be fixed this 22nd day of September, 2014 
                 
 

  
 Mayor Jonathan P. LaBonté   



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 
**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 
 
Subject: Adoption of the most current edition of the National Electrical Code NFPA 70-2014. 
 
 
Information: The National Electrical Code (NEC) provides practical safeguarding of persons and property from hazards 
arising from the use of electricity. The NEC is updated every 3 years and considered to be the foundation of electrical 
safety. The new edition must be officially adopted prior to being implemented as the current edition in the City. The 
National Electrical Code (NFPA 70) is part of a set of codes and standards set forth by the National Fire 
Protection Association. It is comprised of a set of rules that when properly applied are intended to provide safe 
installation of electrical wiring and equipment. This standard governs the use of electrical wire, cable, fixtures, 
and communication cable installed in buildings throughout the United States and worldwide. 
 

 
Financial:  

 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Second reading to adopt the most recent edition (2014-NFPA 70) The 
National Electrical Code. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Presented at the 8/4/2014 Council Workshop and passage of first reading on 
8/18/2014.  
 

 
Attachments:  
Adoption of the 2014 National Electrical Code 
Top twelve changes for the 2014 NEC 
Adoption of the 2014 NEC 
The importance of adopting the latest edition of the National Electrical Code 
Electrical inspections are a vital public safety function 
Ordinance 06-08182014 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Ordinance  06-08182014 

Author:   Charlie DeAngelis, City Electrician 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Adoption of the 2014 NEC NFPA 70 
 

The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) has been the developer and publisher of NFPA 70®, 

National Electrical Code® (NEC®) since 1911. The NEC is widely used  throughout the world for the built 

environment, establishing the standard for safe electrical installations. The NEC is adopted by various 

levels of government in all 50 U.S. states and is adopted state-wide in many. 

Adopting the latest edition of the NEC 
 
By adopting the current edition of the NEC, you provide your constituents with: 
 

 

 an electrical code that has kept pace and with changes and updates in electrical safety 

technology, methods, and products. 

 an electrical code that has responded a timely manner to industry and societal needs, i.e., 

ensuring minimum safety requirements are in place for wind and solar energies and making 

certain that expanding electric vehicle charging infrastructure will meet the demands of the 

industry and public safety. 

 an electrical code that coordinates with other NFPA codes and standards as well as model codes 

and standards developed by other organizations. 

 an electrical code that facilitates the implementation of a document that is up to date with current 

industry technology and methods. 

 an electrical code that provides state and local licensing authorities with the ability to implement 

current and relevant requirements into licensing examinations and continuing education 

requirements.   

 an electrical code that allows consumers to derive the benefit of electrical installations 

incorporating equipment and methods that provide the latest advancements in electrical safety.  

 an electrical code that does not pose a barrier to implementation of new technologies. 

 an electrical code that recognizes the latest electrical products and does not create a barrier for 

equipment manufacturers 
-  

http://www.nfpa.org/70
http://www.nfpa.org/70


Top 12 Noteworthy Changes for the 2014 
National Electrical Code (NEC) 

According to the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), there were 3745 proposals 

submitted to NFPA recommending changes for the 2014 NEC. In addition to these proposals, 

there were 1625 comments submitted concerning the NEC Code-Making Panels’ responses to 

these proposals.   Below are some of the more noteworthy changes that occurred in the 2014 

edition of the NEC.  

1. Revision: 600 Volts to 1000 Volts Threshold 

 

2. New Articles 
● Article 393 Low Voltage Suspended Ceiling Power Distribution 

● Article 646 Modular Data Centers 

●  Article 728 Fire Resistive Cable Systems 

● Article 750 Energy Management Systems 

3.   Definition: 
Readily Accessible 

Capable of being reached quickly for operation, renewal or inspection without 

requiring those concerned to use a tool, to climb over, remove obstacle or other.  

4. 210.8 GFCI Protection for Dwelling Unit Laundry Areas and Commercial Garages 

• Dwelling unit laundry areas will now require GFCI protection for all 125-volt, 

single-phase, 15- and 20 amp receptacles in laundry rooms. 

• GFCI protection required for all 125 volt single phase 15 and 20 ampere 

receptacles installed in all commercial, non dwelling unit garages, service bays 

and similar areas. 

• Not only garages where electrical diagnostic equipment electrical hand tools, or 

portable lighting equipment are to be used. 

5. 210.8(D) GFCI for Kitchen Dishwasher Branch Circuit. 

GFCI protection shall be provided for outlets that supply dishwashers installed in 

dwelling units. This includes receptacles and hardwired (All GFCI’s must be readily 

accessible).  

6. 210.12 AFCI Protection for Dwelling Units now required in kitchen, laundry and 

dormitories.  Receptacle AFCI’s can be used under certain conditions. 

7. 300.38 Raceways in Wet Locations Above Grade. 

A new section was added to Part II (over 1000 volts, nominal) of Article 300 to 

indicate that the interior of raceways installed in wet locations above grade are now 



considered to be a wet location. This will bring aboveground installation requirements 

for over 1000 volts consistent with the requirements in 300.9 for 1000 volts and 

under. 

8. 310.15(B)(3)(c), Exception and Table 310.15(B)(3)(c) Raceways and Cables Exposed 

to Sunlight on Rooftops. 

A new exception was also added that will allow the employment of Type XHHW-2 

conductors, which is a thermoset insulated conductor, to be installed in raceways or 

cables on rooftops without having to apply an ambient temperature adjustment 

correction factor for these conductors. 

9. Revision: 406.9(B)(1) Extra-Duty Covers at 15- and 20-Ampere Receptacles at Wet 

Locations. 

10. Revision/New: 445.11 Marking at Generators to indicate if the neutral is bonded to 

the frame. 

11 517.18(B); 517.19(B); and 517.19(C) Health Care Facilities – Number of 

Receptacles. 

12 New: 690.12 Rapid Shutdown of PV Systems on Buildings. 

 These are just a few of the changes that have been incorporated into the new 2014 NEC.  

 



The Importance of Adopting the Latest Edition  
Of the National Electrical Code® 

 
The undersigned members of the Electrical Code Coalition support direct adoption of the latest edition of 
the National Electrical Code. Direct adoption means that it is not adopted through a building code or 
other standard, but is directly adopted through direct legislative or administrative action.  Direct action 
ensures that the requirements are not dependent on a code that is unrelated or only peripherally related. 
 
The latest edition represents the latest technological advances. The NEC is revised every three years. Each 
edition goes through an extensive public vetting process to ensure that it meets technical and societal needs for 
minimum electrical safety. 
 
Building inspection departments are evaluated by the Insurance Services Office (ISO) based on use of up to-
date Codes and Standards. Adoption of the latest edition of the NEC can result in lower insurance premiums 
for property owners in a jurisdiction. 
 
The National Electrical Code is responsive. The Code is revised every three years to ensure that the 
requirements take into account the latest in technology and safety. This ANSI-based consensus process includes 
expertise from installers, inspectors, electric utilities, testing laboratories, manufacturers and others. 
 
Industry training programs and industry magazines and other resources support the current edition. When 
the new edition is released, all of the industry resources switch their focus to the new edition. All of the trade 
magazines and industry web sites want to provide up-to-date information. 
 
Electricians and electrical inspectors trained and working to the current edition have increased 
opportunities. Uniform adoption of the latest edition NEC across jurisdictions will help open up opportunities 
for electricians, contractors, and inspectors to work in various jurisdictions since they will all have been trained 
to the same technologically current, safety oriented code. 
 

The Electrical Code Coalition: An Industry Coalition Supporting 
Qualified Electrical Inspectors 

 

 
 

 
Brett Brenner, President 

Electrical Safety Foundation Intl. (ESFI) 





Electrical Code Adoption 2014 – Additional information and clarification for the September 22, 2014 
Meeting 

This information is both a clarification as well as additional information to clarify the 2014 Code 
Adoption by NFPA and the State of Maine and references made regarding AFCI and GFCI devices. The 
City Electricians goal is help educate and assist the citizens of Auburn towards  a safe and affordable 
electrical installation and provide installers with the latest technologies to achieve that goal. 
 
Code adoption:  
 
The National Electrical code NFPA 70 was adopted by NFPA in Quincy Ma. August 2013. The 2014 edition 
replaced the 2011 edition and has been in it’s final form since August 3013.   
 
The State of Maine voted to adopt the 2014 edition ( NFPA 70- 2014) at the July  Examining Board 
meeting. 
 
State wide as of August 20th 2014 inspections and permitting reference the  2014 edition. 
 
In order for municipalities to utilize the most current edition of the NEC city ordinance must reflect the 
adoption of the most current standard ( NFPA 70 - 2014 ).  
 
Staff has looked into the question raised by Councilor Crowley stating that the 2014 code was still out 
for public comment until October or November and changes could still be made, so how could we adopt 
a code that is not yet written and finalized?  The Code has been finalized for over a year as noted above, 
however, NFPA has started work on the 2017 addition and there is an open public comment period on 
that future version of the code.  I suspect that the question was related to the 2017 code as staff has not 
found any other information related to this.   
 
 
-What are AFCI’s and GFCI’s- 
 
To help councilors better understand comments mentioned regarding Arc fault circuit interrupters( 
AFCI’s) and ground fault circuit interrupters (GFCI’s) The City Electrician has included helpful links for a 
simple explanation. 
 
AFCI devices are not new and have been  installed in previous code cycles  since 1999. AFCI’s protect 
from fires associated with interior wiring of a dwelling.  http://www.afcisafety.org/  
 
GFCI’s – ground fault circuit interrupters have been a  requirement for specific installations since 1968. 
GFCI’s protect people from electrocution with water related installations. 
 
 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K555qzFPSCE 
 
Copy of August 29 Email from City Electrician that was forwarded to Council in Early September:  
 
 
I wanted to follow up on some questions that were asked during the first reading of the 2014 NEC. I 
understand and have sympathy with individuals regarding the cost of new codes and standards. With 
that said  I am providing a little background information to help citizen realize that in reality many of the 
new requirements actually lower the cost of installation and still allows for a safe installation. We need 
to keep in mind that the NFPA 70 is the bare minimum installation requirements for any electrical 

http://www.afcisafety.org/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K555qzFPSCE


Electrical Code Adoption 2014 – Additional information and clarification for the September 22, 2014 
Meeting 

installation worldwide. Many installations go far above this standard. Also for each new requirement  
NFPA performs a cost analysis study for the change as well. The list below are a few changes to the 2014 
NEC that actually provide less expensive installation methods that the previous 2011 NEC.  
 
2014 NEC changes that reduce installation costs: The highlighted information would be cost savings 
utilizing the 2014 NEC  for dwelling applications.  
 
 
210.52(E)(1) on outdoor receptacle access (could result in one or maybe two less outlets depending on 
number and location of porches and decks) 
220.12 Exception-ability to use energy code lighting load parameters instead of NEC values (this is 
significant in commercial construction) 
250.121 Exception permission to use one conductor as EGC & GEC. 
310.15(B)(3)(c) use of XHHW-2 insulation exempts installation on rooftop from temperature adder 
(probably not a big deal in Maine, but an example none the less) 
404.2(C) relief provided on having a neutral at each switch location 
547.5(F) permission to use insulated aluminum conductor as an underground EGC 
555.15(C) permission to use insulated aluminum conductor as an underground EGC 
680.42(B) relief provided on perimeter equipotential bonding 
 
 





Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 
Adam Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
           

ORDINANCE  06-08182014 
 

ORDERED, that the Code of Ordinances, section 12-96 hereby be amended as follows;  
 
Sec. 12-96. National Electrical Code adopted 

The city hereby adopts a certain electrical code known as the National Electrical Code 
recommended by the National Fire Protection Association and being particularly the 2008 2014 edition. 

 

 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
Council Meeting Date: September 22, 2014 Ordinance 07-09082014 

 
Author: Douglas M. Greene, City Planner 

 
Subject:  Re-zoning request in the Taylor Pond Area 

 
Information: A citizen based petition was submitted to the Planning Office requesting a rezoning of 
properties in the Southwest area of Taylor Pond as recommended in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan. The 
rezoning will change the current zoning of Low Density County Residential to Urban Residential.  This 
area has built up over many years in small summer camps but has been zoned Low Density County 
Residential (LDCR) which had a 3 acre minimum lot size and fairly large building setbacks. This area 
is also served by sanitary sewers which also can facilitate smaller lots. 

The main reasons the 2010 Comprehensive Plan recommended this change are: 
1. The change is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan in areas that are served by public sewers. 
2. The zone change will make more of the lots in the area more conforming than the existing zoning. 
3. The change will allow for the redevelopment of seasonal homes into year round homes with setbacks 

that are smaller than currently allowed. 
4. The zone change will make the homes in the area of the proposed zone change more consistent with 

existing development patterns in the area. 
 
Pro’s & Con’s:  Pro’s- Rezoning these properties will allow the owners to renovate, expand and improve their 
properties, which will add value and increase tax revenues. Con’s- None 

 
Financial:  No direct financial impacts.  Long term impact should be positive with higher assessments due to 
improvements to residences and structures. 

 
Action Requested at this Meeting:  Positive action to move this item to a public hearing and 1st reading. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: 

1. 2010 Comprehensive Plan process over 2 year period with recommendation to change the future land use in 
this area. 

2. Planning Board recommends approval to the City Council of the zone change on July 8, 2014 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Citizen petition for Zone Change (ZOMA 1194). 
2. Staff Report to Planning Board from July 8, 2014 meeting. 
3. Map from 2010 Comprehensive Plan with recommended change to Taylor Pond area. 
4. Map of existing zoning in the Taylor Pond area. 
5. Map of proposed zoning (as reviewed by the Planning Board at the 7/8 meeting. 
6. Map of revised zoning based on Planning Board action at the 7/8 meeting. 
7. Map of Environmental Constraints. 
8. Minutes of the July 8, 2014 Planning Board Meeting 
9. Public Hearing Ad 
10. Planning Board Recommendation Report 
11. Taylor Pond Zone Change Memo 
12. Taylor Pond Zone Change Report 
13. Ordinance 07-09082014 

 
 

 



 
 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 



















Conservation/Open Space
Low-Moderate Density Residential Development

Agriculture/Rural

Agriculture/Rural

Low Density Residential Development

Moderate Density Neighborhood Conservation

Moderate Density Residential Development District

Low Density Residential Development

Low-Moderate Density Residential Development

GARFIELD

VA
LV

IEW

CHICOINE

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

PO
ND

 VI
EW

LE
DG

EV
IEW

BOULDER

SU
ND

ER
LA

ND

SILVA

PINEWOOD

TERRACE

ALDERWOOD
MOUNT APATITE

WINDEMERE

WEATHERLY

CA
ND

LE
BE

RR
YBR

AM
BL

EW
OOD

PO
ND

 CR
ES

T

106 SMALL RD

GARFIELD RD
65 MOUNT APATITE RD

198 CHICOINE AV

GARFIELD RD

GARFIELD RD

493 GARFIELD RD

243 HATCH RD

585 GARFIELD RD

VALVIEW DR

752 GARFIELD RD

60 MINE RD

HOTEL RD

570 GARFIELD RD

40 MINE RD
34 MINE RD

564 GARFIELD RD

596 GARFIELD RD

545 GARFIELD RD

4 CONCORD PL

211 VALVIEW DR
185 VALVIEW DR

6 OLD CARRIAGE RD139 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

44 CHICOINE AV

359 GARFIELD RD

40 MINE RD

64 WINDEMERE WY

648 GARFIELD RD

95 LEDGEVIEW CV

624 GARFIELD RD

558 GARFIELD RD

165 VALVIEW DR
125 VALVIEW DR

CHICOINE AV

45 VALVIEW DR

101 VALVIEW DR

124 VALVIEW DR

699 GARFIELD RD

130 VALVIEW DR

75 SUNDERLAND DR

48 WEATHERLY PL

89 CHICOINE AV

37 BOULDER DR

126 VALVIEW DR

140 VALVIEW DR

165 SUNDERLAND DR
25 VALVIEW DR

83 BOULDER DR

CHICOINE AV

75 VALVIEW DR

55 BOULDER DR

389 STEVENS MILL RD

28 VALVIEW DR

710 GARFIELD RD

110 VALVIEW DR

445 GARFIELD RD

22 BOULDER DR
425 STEVENS MILL RD

183 SUNDERLAND DR

140 CHICOINE AV

45 WINDEMERE WY

GARFIELD RD

975 HOTEL RD

393 GARFIELD RD

49 WEATHERLY PL

89 SUNDERLAND DR

38 WINDEMERE WY

44 CEDARWOOD RD

150 CEDARWOOD RD

115 LEDGEVIEW CV

27 WEATHERLY PL

VALVIEW DR

927 HOTEL RD

37 SUNDERLAND DR

25 ROSEWOOD RD

GARFIELD RD

159 VALVIEW DR

135 MOUNT APATITE RD

45 ROSEWOOD RD
99 CEDARWOOD RD

186 CEDARWOOD RD

214 CHICOINE AV

65 CEDARWOOD RD

98 VALVIEW DR

86 VALVIEW DR

78 VALVIEW DR

995 HOTEL RD

177 SUNDERLAND DR

21 TERRACE RD

115 BOULDER DR 77 CEDARWOOD RD

130 CHICOINE AV

65 VALVIEW DR

50 BOULDER DR

60 BOULDER DR

120 VALVIEW DR

116 BOULDER DR

126 CEDARWOOD RD
126 SUNDERLAND DR

168 VALVIEW DR
176 VALVIEW DR

99 SUNDERLAND DR

273 GARFIELD RD

63 SUNDERLAND DR

101 BOULDER DR

52 WINDEMERE WY

175 VALVIEW DR

285 GARFIELD RD 28 WINDEMERE WY

42 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

63 WINDEMERE WY

53 SUNDERLAND DR
42 CANDLEBERRY DR

21 PINEWOOD DR

89 VALVIEW DR

26 CHICOINE AV

211 GARFIELD RD

27 CHICOINE AV

24 PINEWOOD DR

8 MASON ST
9 SILVA ST

84 BOULDER DR

115 VALVIEW DR

CHICOINE AV

141 VALVIEW DR

32 SUNDERLAND DR

483 STEVENS MILL RD212 SUNDERLAND DR

18 GREENWOOD RD

162 CEDARWOOD RD

150 VALVIEW DR

125 CHICOINE AV

26 SILVA ST

204 VALVIEW DR

20 SUNDERLAND DR

92 BOULDER DR

64 CHICOINE AV

214 VALVIEW DR

138 SUNDERLAND DR

71 BOULDER DR

222 VALVIEW DR

84 CHICOINE AV

7 DEERFIELD DR

198 VALVIEW DR

41 CHICOINE AV

158 VALVIEW DR

70 BOULDER DR

190 VALVIEW DR

35 WEATHERLY PL 44 SUNDERLAND DR

162 SUNDERLAND DR

4 DEERFIELD DR

27 CEDARWOOD RD

230 VALVIEW DR

114 SUNDERLAND DR

70 SANDY BEACH RD

33 PINEWOOD DR

21 POND VIEW CT

125 BOULDER DR

198 SUNDERLAND DR

120 LEDGEVIEW CV

88 SUNDERLAND DR

150 SUNDERLAND DR

90 ALDERWOOD RD

28 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

174 CEDARWOOD RD

15 POND VIEW CT

293 GARFIELD RD
299 GARFIELD RD

81 ALDERWOOD RD

BOULDER DR

303 GARFIELD RD

22 CEDARWOOD RD

30 CEDARWOOD RD

20 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

10 SUNDERLAND DR

455 GARFIELD RD

139 SUNDERLAND DR

74 ALDERWOOD RD

153 SUNDERLAND DR

56 TERRACE RD

50 CHICOINE AV

25 SILVA ST

12 SILVA ST

705 GARFIELD RD

156 LEDGEVIEW CV

42 TERRACE RD

225 CHICOINE AV

173 CHICOINE AV

131 CHICOINE AV

64 SANDY BEACH RD

185 CHICOINE AV

25 SANDY BEACH RD

51 CHICOINE AV

707 GARFIELD RD

2 SANDY BEACH RD

201 CHICOINE AV

47 CHICOINE AV

116 LEDGEVIEW CV

34 TERRACE RD
18 TERRACE RD

167 CHICOINE AV

12 TERRACE RD

167 POND VIEW DR

188 CHICOINE AV

146 CHICOINE AV
147 CHICOINE AV

15 POND CREST LN

63 CHICOINE AV

8 POND CREST LN

137 CHICOINE AV

337 GARFIELD RD

128 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

130 POND VIEW DR
151 POND VIEW DR

134 LEDGEVIEW CV
144 LEDGEVIEW CV

150 LEDGEVIEW CV

17 POND CREST LN157 POND VIEW DR

210 CHICOINE AV

8 SILVA ST

ZOMA- 1194:   2010 Comprehensive Plan Recommendation



GARFIELD

VA
LV

IEW

CHICOINE

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

PO
ND

 VI
EW

LE
DG

EV
IEW

BOULDER

SU
ND

ER
LA

ND

SILVA

PINEWOOD

TERRACE

ALDERWOOD
MOUNT APATITE

WINDEMERE

WE
AT

HE
RL

Y

CA
ND

LE
BE

RR
YBR

AM
BL

EW
OOD

PO
ND

 CR
ES

T

TAYLOR POND

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
AGRICULTURE AND RESOURCE PROTECTION

LOW DENSITY COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

106 SMALL RD

GARFIELD RD
65 MOUNT APATITE RD

198 CHICOINE AV

GARFIELD RD

GARFIELD RD

243 HATCH RD

585 GARFIELD RD

VALVIEW DR

752 GARFIELD RD

60 MINE RD

HOTEL RD

570 GARFIELD RD

40 MINE RD
34 MINE RD

564 GARFIELD RD

596 GARFIELD RD

493 GARFIELD RD

545 GARFIELD RD

4 CONCORD PL

211 VALVIEW DR
185 VALVIEW DR

6 OLD CARRIAGE RD139 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

44 CHICOINE AV

359 GARFIELD RD

40 MINE RD

64 WINDEMERE WY

648 GARFIELD RD

95 LEDGEVIEW CV

624 GARFIELD RD

558 GARFIELD RD

165 VALVIEW DR
125 VALVIEW DR

CHICOINE AV

45 VALVIEW DR

101 VALVIEW DR

124 VALVIEW DR

699 GARFIELD RD

130 VALVIEW DR

75 SUNDERLAND DR

48 WEATHERLY PL

89 CHICOINE AV

37 BOULDER DR

126 VALVIEW DR

140 VALVIEW DR

165 SUNDERLAND DR
25 VALVIEW DR

83 BOULDER DR

CHICOINE AV

75 VALVIEW DR

55 BOULDER DR

389 STEVENS MILL RD

28 VALVIEW DR

710 GARFIELD RD

110 VALVIEW DR

445 GARFIELD RD

22 BOULDER DR
425 STEVENS MILL RD

183 SUNDERLAND DR

140 CHICOINE AV

45 WINDEMERE WY

GARFIELD RD

975 HOTEL RD

393 GARFIELD RD

49 WEATHERLY PL

89 SUNDERLAND DR

38 WINDEMERE WY

44 CEDARWOOD RD

150 CEDARWOOD RD

115 LEDGEVIEW CV

27 WEATHERLY PL

VALVIEW DR

927 HOTEL RD

37 SUNDERLAND DR

25 ROSEWOOD RD

GARFIELD RD

159 VALVIEW DR

135 MOUNT APATITE RD

45 ROSEWOOD RD

99 CEDARWOOD RD

186 CEDARWOOD RD

214 CHICOINE AV

65 CEDARWOOD RD

98 VALVIEW DR

86 VALVIEW DR

78 VALVIEW DR

995 HOTEL RD

177 SUNDERLAND DR

21 TERRACE RD

115 BOULDER DR 77 CEDARWOOD RD

130 CHICOINE AV

65 VALVIEW DR

50 BOULDER DR

60 BOULDER DR

120 VALVIEW DR

116 BOULDER DR

126 CEDARWOOD RD
126 SUNDERLAND DR

168 VALVIEW DR176 VALVIEW DR

99 SUNDERLAND DR

273 GARFIELD RD

63 SUNDERLAND DR

101 BOULDER DR

52 WINDEMERE WY

175 VALVIEW DR

285 GARFIELD RD 28 WINDEMERE WY

42 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

63 WINDEMERE WY

53 SUNDERLAND DR
42 CANDLEBERRY DR

21 PINEWOOD DR

89 VALVIEW DR

211 GARFIELD RD

26 CHICOINE AV

27 CHICOINE AV

24 PINEWOOD DR

8 MASON ST
9 SILVA ST

84 BOULDER DR

115 VALVIEW DR

CHICOINE AV

141 VALVIEW DR

32 SUNDERLAND DR

483 STEVENS MILL RD212 SUNDERLAND DR

18 GREENWOOD RD

12 PINEWOOD DR

162 CEDARWOOD RD

150 VALVIEW DR

125 CHICOINE AV

26 SILVA ST

204 VALVIEW DR

20 SUNDERLAND DR

92 BOULDER DR

64 CHICOINE AV

214 VALVIEW DR

138 SUNDERLAND DR

71 BOULDER DR

222 VALVIEW DR

84 CHICOINE AV

7 DEERFIELD DR

198 VALVIEW DR

41 CHICOINE AV

158 VALVIEW DR

70 BOULDER DR

190 VALVIEW DR

35 WEATHERLY PL
44 SUNDERLAND DR

162 SUNDERLAND DR

4 DEERFIELD DR

27 CANDLEBERRY DR

27 CEDARWOOD RD

28 CANDLEBERRY DR

230 VALVIEW DR

114 SUNDERLAND DR

34 WEATHERLY PL

70 SANDY BEACH RD

33 PINEWOOD DR

21 POND VIEW CT

125 BOULDER DR

198 SUNDERLAND DR

120 LEDGEVIEW CV

60 SUNDERLAND DR
88 SUNDERLAND DR

150 SUNDERLAND DR

90 ALDERWOOD RD

28 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

174 CEDARWOOD RD

15 POND VIEW CT

293 GARFIELD RD
299 GARFIELD RD

81 ALDERWOOD RD

BOULDER DR

303 GARFIELD RD
89 ALDERWOOD RD

22 CEDARWOOD RD

20 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

10 SUNDERLAND DR

455 GARFIELD RD

139 SUNDERLAND DR

74 ALDERWOOD RD
82 ALDERWOOD RD

56 TERRACE RD

50 CHICOINE AV

25 SILVA ST

12 SILVA ST

705 GARFIELD RD

156 LEDGEVIEW CV

42 TERRACE RD

225 CHICOINE AV

173 CHICOINE AV

131 CHICOINE AV

64 SANDY BEACH RD

185 CHICOINE AV

25 SANDY BEACH RD

51 CHICOINE AV

193 CHICOINE AV

707 GARFIELD RD

2 SANDY BEACH RD

201 CHICOINE AV

47 CHICOINE AV

116 LEDGEVIEW CV

34 TERRACE RD
18 TERRACE RD

215 CHICOINE AV

167 CHICOINE AV

12 TERRACE RD

167 POND VIEW DR

156 CHICOINE AV
146 CHICOINE AV

147 CHICOINE AV

221 CHICOINE AV

15 POND CREST LN

63 CHICOINE AV

8 POND CREST LN

337 GARFIELD RD

128 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

130 POND VIEW DR
151 POND VIEW DR

134 LEDGEVIEW CV
144 LEDGEVIEW CV

150 LEDGEVIEW CV

17 POND CREST LN157 POND VIEW DR

210 CHICOINE AV

153 CHICOINE AV

8 SILVA ST

ZOMA- 1194  "Pond View Zone Change"  Existing Zoning



TAYLOR POND

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

AGRICULTURE AND RESOURCE PROTECTION

LOW DENSITY COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL
RURAL RESIDENTIAL

GARFIELD

VA
LV

IEW

CHICOINE

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

PO
ND

 VI
EW

LE
DG

EV
IEW

BOULDER

SU
ND

ER
LA

ND

SILVA

PINEWOOD

TERRACE

ALDERWOOD
MOUNT APATITE

WINDEMERE

WE
AT

HE
RL

Y

CA
ND

LE
BE

RR
YBR

AM
BL

EW
OOD

PO
ND

 CR
ES

T

106 SMALL RD

GARFIELD RD
65 MOUNT APATITE RD

198 CHICOINE AV

GARFIELD RD

GARFIELD RD

243 HATCH RD

585 GARFIELD RD

VALVIEW DR

752 GARFIELD RD

60 MINE RD

HOTEL RD

570 GARFIELD RD

40 MINE RD
34 MINE RD

564 GARFIELD RD

596 GARFIELD RD

493 GARFIELD RD

545 GARFIELD RD

4 CONCORD PL

211 VALVIEW DR
185 VALVIEW DR

6 OLD CARRIAGE RD139 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

44 CHICOINE AV

359 GARFIELD RD

40 MINE RD

64 WINDEMERE WY

648 GARFIELD RD

95 LEDGEVIEW CV

624 GARFIELD RD

558 GARFIELD RD

165 VALVIEW DR
125 VALVIEW DR

CHICOINE AV

45 VALVIEW DR

101 VALVIEW DR

124 VALVIEW DR

699 GARFIELD RD

130 VALVIEW DR

75 SUNDERLAND DR

48 WEATHERLY PL

89 CHICOINE AV

37 BOULDER DR

126 VALVIEW DR

140 VALVIEW DR

165 SUNDERLAND DR
25 VALVIEW DR

83 BOULDER DR

CHICOINE AV

75 VALVIEW DR

55 BOULDER DR

389 STEVENS MILL RD

28 VALVIEW DR

710 GARFIELD RD

110 VALVIEW DR

445 GARFIELD RD

22 BOULDER DR
425 STEVENS MILL RD

183 SUNDERLAND DR

140 CHICOINE AV

45 WINDEMERE WY

GARFIELD RD

975 HOTEL RD

393 GARFIELD RD

49 WEATHERLY PL

89 SUNDERLAND DR

38 WINDEMERE WY

44 CEDARWOOD RD

150 CEDARWOOD RD

115 LEDGEVIEW CV

27 WEATHERLY PL

VALVIEW DR

37 SUNDERLAND DR

25 ROSEWOOD RD

GARFIELD RD

159 VALVIEW DR

135 MOUNT APATITE RD

45 ROSEWOOD RD
99 CEDARWOOD RD

186 CEDARWOOD RD

214 CHICOINE AV

65 CEDARWOOD RD

98 VALVIEW DR

86 VALVIEW DR

78 VALVIEW DR

995 HOTEL RD

177 SUNDERLAND DR

21 TERRACE RD

115 BOULDER DR 77 CEDARWOOD RD

130 CHICOINE AV

65 VALVIEW DR

50 BOULDER DR

60 BOULDER DR

120 VALVIEW DR

116 BOULDER DR
126 CEDARWOOD RD126 SUNDERLAND DR

168 VALVIEW DR
176 VALVIEW DR

99 SUNDERLAND DR

273 GARFIELD RD

63 SUNDERLAND DR

101 BOULDER DR

52 WINDEMERE WY

175 VALVIEW DR

285 GARFIELD RD 28 WINDEMERE WY

42 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

63 WINDEMERE WY

53 SUNDERLAND DR
42 CANDLEBERRY DR

21 PINEWOOD DR

89 VALVIEW DR

26 CHICOINE AV

211 GARFIELD RD

27 CHICOINE AV

24 PINEWOOD DR

8 MASON ST
9 SILVA ST

84 BOULDER DR

115 VALVIEW DR

CHICOINE AV

141 VALVIEW DR

32 SUNDERLAND DR

483 STEVENS MILL RD212 SUNDERLAND DR

18 GREENWOOD RD

162 CEDARWOOD RD

150 VALVIEW DR

125 CHICOINE AV

204 VALVIEW DR

20 SUNDERLAND DR

92 BOULDER DR

64 CHICOINE AV

214 VALVIEW DR

138 SUNDERLAND DR

71 BOULDER DR

222 VALVIEW DR

84 CHICOINE AV

7 DEERFIELD DR

198 VALVIEW DR

41 CHICOINE AV

158 VALVIEW DR

70 BOULDER DR

190 VALVIEW DR

35 WEATHERLY PL
44 SUNDERLAND DR

162 SUNDERLAND DR

4 DEERFIELD DR

27 CANDLEBERRY DR

27 CEDARWOOD RD

230 VALVIEW DR

34 WEATHERLY PL

70 SANDY BEACH RD

33 PINEWOOD DR

21 POND VIEW CT

125 BOULDER DR

198 SUNDERLAND DR

120 LEDGEVIEW CV

60 SUNDERLAND DR

88 SUNDERLAND DR

150 SUNDERLAND DR

90 ALDERWOOD RD

28 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

174 CEDARWOOD RD

15 POND VIEW CT

293 GARFIELD RD
299 GARFIELD RD

81 ALDERWOOD RD

BOULDER DR

303 GARFIELD RD

22 CEDARWOOD RD

20 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

455 GARFIELD RD

139 SUNDERLAND DR

74 ALDERWOOD RD
82 ALDERWOOD RD

56 TERRACE RD

50 CHICOINE AV

705 GARFIELD RD

156 LEDGEVIEW CV

42 TERRACE RD

225 CHICOINE AV

173 CHICOINE AV

131 CHICOINE AV

64 SANDY BEACH RD

185 CHICOINE AV

51 CHICOINE AV

193 CHICOINE AV

707 GARFIELD RD

201 CHICOINE AV

36 SANDY BEACH RD

47 CHICOINE AV

116 LEDGEVIEW CV

34 TERRACE RD
18 TERRACE RD

167 CHICOINE AV

12 TERRACE RD

167 POND VIEW DR

156 CHICOINE AV

188 CHICOINE AV

146 CHICOINE AV
147 CHICOINE AV

221 CHICOINE AV

15 POND CREST LN

63 CHICOINE AV

8 POND CREST LN

52 SANDY BEACH RD

337 GARFIELD RD

128 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

130 POND VIEW DR
151 POND VIEW DR

134 LEDGEVIEW CV
144 LEDGEVIEW CV

150 LEDGEVIEW CV

17 POND CREST LN157 POND VIEW DR

210 CHICOINE AV

153 CHICOINE AV

ZOMA- 1194:  "Pond View Zone Change" Proposed Zoning



TAYLOR POND

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

LOW DENSITY COUNTRY RESIDENTIAL

AGRICULTURE AND RESOURCE PROTECTION

GARFIELD

VA
LV

IEW

CHICOINE
PO

ND
 VI

EW

LE
DG

EV
IEW

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

BOULDER

PINEWOOD

SUNDERLANDWE
AT

HE
RL

Y CA
ND

LE
BE

RR
YBR

AM
BL

EW
OOD

ALDERWOOD

PO
ND

 CR
ES

T

106 SMALL RD GARFIELD RD

65 MOUNT APATITE RD

198 CHICOINE AV

GARFIELD RD

493 GARFIELD RD

545 GARFIELD RD

585 GARFIELD RD

VALVIEW DR

211 VALVIEW DR

HOTEL RD

570 GARFIELD RD

359 GARFIELD RD

564 GARFIELD RD

596 GARFIELD RD

648 GARFIELD RD

624 GARFIELD RD

752 GARFIELD RD

CHICOINE AV

101 VALVIEW DR

64 WINDEMERE WY

75 VALVIEW DR

185 VALVIEW DR

139 LEDGEVIEW CV

9 CONCORD PL

5 CONCORD PL
GARFIELD RD

44 CHICOINE AV

6 OLD CARRIAGE RD

95 LEDGEVIEW CV

6 CONCORD PL9 CONCORD PL

558 GARFIELD RD

165 VALVIEW DR
125 VALVIEW DR

45 VALVIEW DR

124 VALVIEW DR

130 VALVIEW DR

75 SUNDERLAND DR

48 WEATHERLY PL

89 CHICOINE AV

126 VALVIEW DR

140 VALVIEW DR

165 SUNDERLAND DR
25 VALVIEW DR

83 BOULDER DR

CHICOINE AV

28 VALVIEW DR

699 GARFIELD RD

110 VALVIEW DR

445 GARFIELD RD

140 CHICOINE AV

183 SUNDERLAND DR

GARFIELD RD

393 GARFIELD RD

49 WEATHERLY PL

89 SUNDERLAND DR

150 CEDARWOOD RD

975 HOTEL RD

115 LEDGEVIEW CV

27 WEATHERLY PL

VALVIEW DR

37 SUNDERLAND DR

25 ROSEWOOD RD

GARFIELD RD

159 VALVIEW DR

45 ROSEWOOD RD

99 CEDARWOOD RD

186 CEDARWOOD RD

214 CHICOINE AV

65 CEDARWOOD RD

98 VALVIEW DR

86 VALVIEW DR

78 VALVIEW DR

177 SUNDERLAND DR

55 BOULDER DR

115 BOULDER DR 77 CEDARWOOD RD

130 CHICOINE AV

65 VALVIEW DR

120 VALVIEW DR

116 BOULDER DR
126 CEDARWOOD RD

60 BOULDER DR

126 SUNDERLAND DR

168 VALVIEW DR
176 VALVIEW DR

99 SUNDERLAND DR
63 SUNDERLAND DR

101 BOULDER DR

175 VALVIEW DR

42 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

45 WINDEMERE WY

53 SUNDERLAND DR 42 CANDLEBERRY DR

21 PINEWOOD DR

89 VALVIEW DR

995 HOTEL RD

63 WINDEMERE WY

27 CHICOINE AV

24 PINEWOOD DR

84 BOULDER DR

115 VALVIEW DR

26 CHICOINE AV

CHICOINE AV

141 VALVIEW DR

32 SUNDERLAND DR

18 GREENWOOD RD

12 PINEWOOD DR

162 CEDARWOOD RD

150 VALVIEW DR

125 CHICOINE AV

204 VALVIEW DR

20 SUNDERLAND DR

92 BOULDER DR

64 CHICOINE AV

214 VALVIEW DR

138 SUNDERLAND DR

71 BOULDER DR

222 VALVIEW DR

84 CHICOINE AV

7 DEERFIELD DR

198 VALVIEW DR

41 CHICOINE AV

158 VALVIEW DR

70 BOULDER DR

190 VALVIEW DR

35 WEATHERLY PL
44 SUNDERLAND DR

162 SUNDERLAND DR

4 DEERFIELD DR

27 CANDLEBERRY DR28 CANDLEBERRY DR

230 VALVIEW DR

137 CEDARWOOD RD

114 SUNDERLAND DR

34 WEATHERLY PL

70 SANDY BEACH RD

33 PINEWOOD DR

21 POND VIEW CT

45 PINEWOOD DR
125 BOULDER DR

19 DEERFIELD DR

23 SUNDERLAND DR

120 LEDGEVIEW CV

60 SUNDERLAND DR
88 SUNDERLAND DR

44 PINEWOOD DR

150 SUNDERLAND DR

28 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

174 CEDARWOOD RD

15 POND VIEW CT

81 ALDERWOOD RD
45 ALDERWOOD RD

68 CEDARWOOD RD

174 SUNDERLAND DR 56 CEDARWOOD RD

89 ALDERWOOD RD

20 BRAMBLEWOOD RD

17 GREENWOOD RD

10 SUNDERLAND DR

455 GARFIELD RD

139 SUNDERLAND DR
153 SUNDERLAND DR

129 SUNDERLAND DR

50 CHICOINE AV

156 LEDGEVIEW CV
225 CHICOINE AV

173 CHICOINE AV

131 CHICOINE AV

64 SANDY BEACH RD

185 CHICOINE AV

51 CHICOINE AV

193 CHICOINE AV

73 ALDERWOOD RD

201 CHICOINE AV

47 CHICOINE AV

116 LEDGEVIEW CV

215 CHICOINE AV

167 CHICOINE AV

12 TERRACE RD
18 TERRACE RD

186 SUNDERLAND DR

167 POND VIEW DR

156 CHICOINE AV

188 CHICOINE AV

146 CHICOINE AV
147 CHICOINE AV

221 CHICOINE AV

4 TERRACE RD

161 CHICOINE AV

15 POND CREST LN

199 SUNDERLAND DR

63 CHICOINE AV

8 POND CREST LN

52 SANDY BEACH RD

128 LEDGEVIEW CV

GARFIELD RD

134 POND VIEW DR

151 POND VIEW DR
150 POND VIEW DR

211 CHICOINE AV

134 LEDGEVIEW CV

144 LEDGEVIEW CV

130 POND VIEW DR

150 LEDGEVIEW CV

17 POND CREST LN157 POND VIEW DR

210 CHICOINE AV

160 CHICOINE AV

206 CHICOINE AV

710 GARFIELD RD

303 GARFIELD RD

GARFIELD RD

ZOMA- 1194:  "Pond View Zone Change" Revised

This revised plan is based 
on the recommendation of the 
Auburn Planning Board made 
at its July 8, 2104 meeting.







  July 8, 2014 - Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

RMR (Approved with corrections on 9.9.14)  Page 1 of 6  

 

Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

July 8, 2014 
 

 

Roll Call   

 

Full Members present: Evan Cyr, Emily Mottram, Robert Bowyer Presiding, Dan Philbrick and 

Marc Tardif. 

 

Associate Members present: Kenneth Bellefleur 

 

Associate Members absent: Mia Poliquin Pross 

 

Also present representing City staff: Eric Cousens, Deputy Director of Planning & 

Development and Douglas Greene, City Planner. 

 
(02:10 on DVD) 

Chairperson Bowyer called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. He said there were 2 vacancies on 

the Board; therefore, Ken Bellefleur’s member status would be elevated to full member status for 

tonight’s meeting. He then explained the procedure that is followed for public hearings.  

 

Public Hearings: 

 

Public hearing on a proposal by Snowden Consulting Engineers, Inc., an agent for Pine 

Tree Holdings, aka. Hammond Tractor for a special exception and site plan review for 

property located at 1525 Minot Avenue, in order to construct a new 21,600 sf. retail 

building and 24,000 sf. of self storage units, pursuant to Chapter 60, Sections 60-525 (b) 

(14); 60-1301 and 60-1336 of the City of Auburn Ordinances. 

(06:50 on DVD) 

Douglas Greene went over the staff report and presented slides via PowerPoint. 

 
(15:45 on DVD) 

Chairperson Bowyer asked what was the City’s general policy about accepting streets in new 

commercial/industrial developments. He also asked if the City were to accept the street and if it 

were to be built to City standards, what is the prescribed right-of-way width and does the cross 

section of the proposed construction conform to City standards. 

 
(19:45 on DVD) 

Gary Hammond, owner of Hammond Tractor and Boyd Snowden acting agent from Snowden 

Consulting Engineers spoke about the project. Mr. Snowden stated the plan was to construct the 

road to City standards but not necessarily request acceptance from the City at this time. 

 

Open Public Input 

A motion was made by Emily Mottram and seconded by Dan Philbrick to close the public input 

part of the meeting. After a vote of 6-0-0, the motion carried.  



  July 8, 2014 - Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

RMR (Approved with corrections on 9.9.14)  Page 2 of 6  

 

 
(22:53 on DVD) 

A motion was made by Dan Philbrick and seconded by Ken Bellefleur to approve the special 

exception and site plan review for property located at 1525 Minot Avenue, in order to construct a 

new 21,600 sf. retail building and 24,000 sf. of self storage units, pursuant to Chapter 60, 

Sections 60-525 (b) (14); 60-1301 and 60-1336 of the City of Auburn Ordinances. 

After a vote of 6-0-0, the motion carried. 

 

Public hearing on a proposal to amend the City Of Auburn Zoning Map in the area Pond 

View Road and Taylor Pond from Low Density Country Residential District (LDCR) to 

Urban Residential District (UR).  The proposed change includes the following properties: 

493, 545, & 585 Garfield Rd., 0 Garfield Rd (PID- 225-009), 0 Garfield Rd. (PID-226-004), 

95, 115, 116, 120, 128, 134, 138, 139, 144, 150, & 156 Ledgeview Cv., 8, 14, 15, & 17 Pond 

Crest Ln., 15, 21, & 21 Pond View Ct., 130, 134, 135, 147, 150, 151, 157, 160, 161, & 167 

Pond View Dr., 124, 126, and 130 Valview Dr. pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XVII, 

Division 2 of the Ordinances of the City of Auburn. 
 

Eric Cousens went over the staff report and explained the various maps that he presented via 

PowerPoint. 
 

(35:30 on DVD) 

Emily Mottram stated she had a client that currently owned one of the properties affected by the 

zone change but said the zone change did not affect what they were doing on the property. 

Chairperson Bowyer asked if the Board members felt there was any potential conflict of interest 

with Emily participating and all replied they did not feel there was any conflict so Emily could 

participate. 
 

Chairperson Bowyer asked beyond zoning, what other City ordinances or codes might come into 

play when seasonal buildings are being converted to year round homes. Eric replied there are 

several environmental protections in place that staff believes would prevent any negative 

environmental impact from allowing reduced setbacks with the zone change and mentioned the 

following:  

 Taylor Pond Overlay District requires that for a conversion from seasonal to a year round 

residence that they connect to City sewer.  

 Phosphorus standards requires that if they expand the footprint of the building by more 

than 575 sq ft or the driveway by more than 1,500 sq ft that they hire a design 

professional to do the calculations to figure out if the run-off will exceed their allowance 

for phosphorus.  

 Shoreland zoning requires that any building within 100 ft of the water is not expanded by 

more than 30% by floor area or volume. 

 At the State level we have rules/standards for impacting any  wetland and soil disturbance 

prohibitions within 75 feet of the pond unless special circumstances requires soil 

disturbance where they can get a permit for up to 25 feet of the water. 
 

(41:22 on DVD) 

Evan Cyr added that there are also technical standards for construction spelled out in the 

building, electrical and plumbing codes. 



  July 8, 2014 - Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

RMR (Approved with corrections on 9.9.14)  Page 3 of 6  

 

 

Open Public Input 
 

(44:35 on DVD) 

Dana Little, resident of 585 Garfield Road and President of Taylor Pond Association said he was 

concerned about the quality of the water, especially phosphorus run-off. He said he was not here 

to oppose this but wanted to make certain environmental impacts were minimized as this pond is 

very vulnerable. He mentioned Sabattus Pond as an example of what can happen if regulations 

are lax. He said he’s seen a lot of illegal development around Taylor Pond such as someone 

building a road where it wasn’t supposed to be built, people cutting down trees and establishing 

lawns where there weren’t any lawns before. He spoke about the various programs that the 

Taylor Pond Association offered to area homeowners. He asked City staff if this change would 

affect taxes in the area. Eric replied no it wouldn’t and explained how the Assessors use 

neighborhood codes. 

 

Ken Bellefleur asked if he had any suggestions. Mr. Little suggested that we enforce current 

regulations and add to the regulations that people establish buffer zones of 10 to 20 feet between 

the house and the pond. 

 

A discussion ensued regarding buffer zones, phosphorus run-off, expansion and development 

around the pond. 

 
(52:45 on DVD) 

Donald Mailhot, co-owner of 147 Pondview Drive, gave a brief family history and explained the 

reasons behind the petition. He said he favors the petition but with careful planning. 

 

Marc Tardif asked Mr. Mailhot how he felt about a vegetative buffer being an added condition. 

He replied he didn’t believe there was any place in that area that would allow for any expansion 

and suspects that the majority of people are aware of potential issues with run-off. 

 

Jacqueline Dowling of 161 Pondview Drive said it took over 3 years to turn her camp into a 

year-round home because of all of the rules and regulations and inspections that were done 

during the process. For that reason, she said she didn’t think the little setback issue that is on the 

table is going to make that much difference because the land is already built up with no more 

room left to build more. She said it’s only to let people make improvements so is in favor of the 

proposal. 

 
(01:01:48 on DVD)  

Marion Rausch of 86 Valview Drive mentioned an email that she had written for the Board 

members. She spoke about when rules were broken, the fines were paid but people weren’t made 

to undo what they did wrong so many people in the area are worried that this will continue. She 

went to the map and pointed out where the zone change should end to avoid new development. 

 

Raymond Bedette of 130 Valview Drive said he agrees with previous comments to make a very 

narrow strip to allow people to do what they want with their camps. But as a past President of the 

Auburn Water District and past member of the Lewiston Auburn Watershed, he said he has seen 

many undevelopable properties get in through loopholes and added that we should do everything 



  July 8, 2014 - Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

RMR (Approved with corrections on 9.9.14)  Page 4 of 6  

 

we can to protect those areas. He said he was opposed to this as proposed but said there was a 

compromised position of a narrow Urban Residential band that accomplishes what people want 

to accomplish but does not open up the back land for future development. 

 

Barbara Mitchell of 179 West Shore Road said it makes sense as a protection to ask for a buffer 

for any expansion and said she agreed with Mr. Bedette and Ms. Rausch about keeping this to a 

narrow band and keeping the back land zoned as LDCR. She asked why the illegal road was 

never rectified. Eric replied that stabilization measures did rectify the situation and fines were 

paid to Maine DEP. He said it was permissible but they should have obtained permits before they 

did the work, then they would have known what they could and couldn’t do at that time instead 

of having to undo some things. 

 
(01:09:42 on DVD)  

Marc Tardif asked if more lots could be added on that road/driveway if this was approved. Eric 

replied there was a potential for 2 lots on that driveway right now as it existed and said he didn’t 

think this proposal would change that. He added that one lot has frontage on Valview and the 

other on Ledgeview. 

 

James Dowling of 161 Pondview Drive stated the size of your lot will dictate what you can build 

on that lot. He said he was in favor of the proposal and said the wetlands controlled most of the 

area so it was very limited. 

 

Eric was asked how he felt about the suggested rezoning of just a narrow band instead of 

including the back land. Eric replied where you actually draw that line is a bit arbitrary. As long 

as you include the areas that are densely developed and are served by City sewer, then it 

accomplishes most of the goals of the Comp Plan. He said he doesn’t think it would be bad to 

take that approach but just a little bit different than what was petitioned for and a little bit 

different than what the Comprehensive Plan recommended.   

 
(01:16:50 on DVD)  

Dana Little explained what a buffer zone entailed. He stated the cheapest is just not mowing the 

lawn all the way and allowing some trees and shrubs to grow up. He mentioned various 

techniques people could use to reduce run-off. 

 

James Beaulieu of 98 Valview Drive stated he was not in favor of the original petition as it was 

written but was in favor of just the narrow strip being rezoned as suggested. 

 

A motion was made by Ken Bellefleur and seconded by Evan Cyr to close the public input part 

of the meeting. After a vote of 6-0-0, the motion carried.  

 
(01:21:39 on DVD)  

Chairperson Bowyer explained to members of the audience that it is only the City Council who 

can amend the zoning map and the Planning Board’s role is to make a recommendation to them 

which is not binding. 

A motion was made by Evan Cyr and seconded by Ken Bellefleur to approve a reduced area for 

zone change from LDCR to UR to extend 250 feet from the high water mark of Taylor Pond 



  July 8, 2014 - Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

RMR (Approved with corrections on 9.9.14)  Page 5 of 6  

 

from 130 Valview Drive to extend to 167 Pondview Drive to include an extension to the rear of 

those parcels that are affected by the zone change. 

 

After a vote of 6-0-0, the motion carried. 

 

Evan Cyr reiterated that the Planning Board does not have the power to actually create this zone 

change; we simply forward a positive or negative opinion to the City Council. He recommended 

to members of the audience who asked for buffer zones to contact the City Council since they 

would be making the final decision. 

 

Chairperson Bowyer explained how notifications to the public were made for City Council 

meetings. 

 
(01:26:08 on DVD)  

Chairperson Bowyer declared a brief recess at 7:29 pm and called the meeting back to order at 

7:36 pm. 

 

Minutes 

A request to approve the June 10, 2014 meeting minutes was made by staff. 

 

Chairperson Bowyer stated the following errors in the June 10, 2014 meeting minutes:  

 on the last page, should have read: “Robert Gagnon was not seeking re-appointment” (not 

Chairperson Bowyer),  

 references to Minot Road should read: Minot Avenue, 

 on the first page, it should read: “that it could be easier to acquire land” (not that it would 

be easier), and  

 when referencing a City Councilor, the title City Councilor should be used before their 

name.  

 

A motion was made by Evan Cyr and seconded by Ken Bellefleur to approve the June 10, 2014 

meeting minutes with corrections. After a vote of 6-0-0, the motion carried.  

 

MISC. BUSINESS: 

Chairperson Bowyer stated that last night, the City Council acted to elevate the status of the 2 

Associate members of the Planning Board, Ken Bellefleur and Mia Poliquin Pross to Full 

member status with their term expiring on January 1, 2017. He also mentioned that 2 new 

Associate members, Nathan Hamlyn and   Elaine Wickman were appointed by the City Council.  

(01:32:45 on DVD)  

OLD BUSINESS:  
Douglas said he would send everyone Evan’s comments on the PB By-Laws in time for the next 

meeting. 

 

There was a discussion regarding the Community Little Theater’s future plans and low income 

tax credits. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 



  July 8, 2014 - Auburn Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

RMR (Approved with corrections on 9.9.14)  Page 6 of 6  

 

A motion was made by Marc Tardif and seconded by Evan Cyr to adjourn. After a vote of 6-0-0, 

the motion carried. Meeting was adjorned at 7:49 pm. 



LEGAL NOTICE 

 

City of Auburn 

 
 

The Auburn City Council will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, September 22, 2014 at 7:00 

p.m. in the Council Chambers at Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine to consider the 

following: 

 

A proposal to amend the City Of Auburn Zoning Map in the area Pond View Road and Taylor 

Pond from Low Density Country Residential District (LDCR) to Urban Residential District 

(UR).  The proposed change includes the following properties: 493 Garfield Rd., 545 Garfield 

Rd., 585 Garfield Rd., Garfield Road (PID- 225-009), Garfield Rd. (PID-226-004), 95 

Ledgeview Cv., 115 Ledgeview Cv., 116 Ledgeview Cv., 120 Ledgeview Cv., 128 Ledgeview 

Cv., 134 Ledgeview Cv., 138 Ledgeview Cv., 139 Ledgeview Cv., 144 Ledgeview Cv., 150 

Ledgeview Cv., 156 Ledgeview Cv., 8 Pond Crest Ln., 14 Pond Crest Ln., 15 Pond Crest Ln., 

17 Pond Crest Ln., 15 Pond View Ct., 21 Pond View Ct., 21 Pond View Ct., 130 Pond View 

Dr., 134 Pond View Dr., 135 Pond View Dr., 147 Pond View Dr., 150 Pond View Dr., 151 

Pond View Dr., 157 Pond View Dr., 160 Pond View Dr., 161 Pond View Dr., 167 Pond View 

Dr., 124 Valview Dr., 126 Valview Dr. and 130 Valview Dr. pursuant to Chapter 60, Article 

XVII, Division 2 of the Ordinances of the City of Auburn. 

 

For maps or more information contact Douglas Greene @ 333-6601 ext. 1156 or 

dgreene@auburnmaine.gov.   

 

 

 

mailto:dgreene@auburnmaine.gov








Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

      ORDINANCE 07-09082014 
 

 
 

BE IT ORDERED, that the City of Auburn amend the Official Zoning Map in the Southwest 
area of Taylor Pond, from Low Density Country Residential District (LDCR) to Urban 
Residential (UR) including land extend 250 feet from the high water mark of Taylor Pond from 
130 Valview Drive and extend to 167 Pondview Drive on the parcels at: 493 Garfield Rd., 545 
Garfield Rd., 585 Garfield Rd., Garfield Road (PID- 225-009), Garfield Rd. (PID-226-004), 95 
Ledgeview Cv., 115 Ledgeview Cv., 116 Ledgeview Cv., 120 Ledgeview Cv., 128 Ledgeview 
Cv., 134 Ledgeview Cv., 138 Ledgeview Cv., 139 Ledgeview Cv., 144 Ledgeview Cv., 150 
Ledgeview Cv., 156 Ledgeview Cv., 8 Pond Crest Ln., 14 Pond Crest Ln., 15 Pond Crest Ln., 17 
Pond Crest Ln., 15 Pond View Ct., 21 Pond View Ct., 21 Pond View Ct., 130 Pond View Dr., 134 
Pond View Dr., 135 Pond View Dr., 147 Pond View Dr., 150 Pond View Dr., 151 Pond View 
Dr., 157 Pond View Dr., 160 Pond View Dr., 161 Pond View Dr., 167 Pond View Dr., 124 
Valview Dr., 126 Valview Dr. and 130 Valview Dr. pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XVII, 
Division 2 of the Ordinances of the City of Auburn and as revised by the Auburn Planning Board 
at their meeting of July 8, 2014 and as depicted on the attached map. 
 
 

 

 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
Subject: Creation of a Finance Committee 
 
Information: This item was discussed at the workshop on September 8, 2014. 

 
Pro’s & Con’s:  

 
Financial: N/A 

 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Approve Resolve 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Workshop on September 8, 2014 

 
Attachments:  
Resolve 10-09222014 
Memo (updated after workshop discussion) 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Resolve  10-09222014 
    
Author:   Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE 10-09222014 
  
 
RESOLVE, Supporting the concept of a City of Auburn Finance Committee 

 
WHEREAS, the 2012 management letter from the Auditors recommended the City create a Finance 
Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Finance Committee can act as a liaison between the Finance Director, City Council and 
citizens of the City of Auburn; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, 
that the City Council supports the concept of a City of Auburn Finance Committee with the mission, purpose 
and structure as outlined on the attached Committee description. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, 
that the City Council proposes that the municipal revenue sharing be reinstated to what it should be according 
to the law, before any expansion of any unnecessary State programs; and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, 
that the City Council hereby expresses its strong opposition to the State not meeting it’s legal obligation to the 
municipality; and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, 
that the City Council proposes that the State of Maine recalibrate the Revenue Sharing Program to account for 
the increased costs associated with being a Service Center Community; 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to provide copies of this RESOLVE to 
the members of the Legislature representing the City of Auburn, members of the Appropriations and Taxation 
Committees, the Governor, the Speaker of the House, the President of the Senate and the Legislative leadership 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Finance Department 

 
 
 
TO:  Clint Deschene, City Manager 
FROM: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
DATE: September 17, 2014 
SUBJECT: Finance Committee 
 
The following memo is intended to outline recommendations for structure and responsibilities for a 
Finance Committee. It is recommended that the committee be made up of 4 full members(3 voting, 1 
non-voting)  and one alternate member, the 2 Councilors on the audit committee and the citizen 
member of the audit committee, the Finance Director as a non-voting member and another citizen as 
the alternate. The Finance Committee would be an extension of the Audit Committee (without School 
appointees). 
 
Finance Committee 

1. As an advisory body of the City Council on finance within the City, the Finance Committee holds 
a public monthly meeting to review the monthly financial report prepared by the Finance 
Director. 

2. Prior to the monthly meeting, generally held the second Thursday of each month at 5:30 PM at 
the City Building, the Finance Director will provide the monthly financial report to the Finance 
Committee.  

3. Additional meetings may be required to review bids if necessary. 
 

Duties of the Finance Committee 
1. The review of monthly financial reports with the Finance Director. 
2. The review of any bid awards that the Finance Director and/or City Manager choose to use an 

exception to authorize the award, (not including any bids related to or governed by Federal or 
State mandates). 

3. The review and recommendation to the full council of any new or amended financial policies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60 Court Street • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 



 
 
 
City of Auburn Finance Committee Member 
 
Position Title:  Finance Committee Member 
Selection:  Appointment to the Audit Committee by the Mayor 
Term: 2 year term concurrent with Councilor’s term in office 
Accountable to: Auburn City Council 
 
Function 
To review with the Finance Director monthly financial reports, bids that would be awarded by exception 
(not including any bids related to or governed by Federal or State mandates), and review and make 
recommendations on new or amended financial policies. To serve as a liaison between the Finance 
Director, the City Council and the citizens of Auburn. 
 
Responsibilities 
 

1. To attend meetings regularly or notify the Chairperson or Finance Director in advance of 
absence. 

2. To adequately review information and prepare for meetings. 
3. To consult and offer advice to the City Council regarding financial policies and procedures. 

 
Time Commitment 
The Finance Committee meetings will generally be held on the second Thursday of each month at 5:30 
PM at Auburn Hall. The meetings should last no more than one 1/2 hour. Various special meeting may 
be held throughout the year if needed. 
 
 
 

 2 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: State Mandated amendment to Chapter 14, Article II- Licenses, Section 14-26. Compliance with state 

and local law and rules required. 

 

 

Information: The Maine Center for Disease Control (CDC) and the Maine Department of Health & Human 

Services (DHHS) has requested the City specifically adopt these rules by ordinance. The reference to State 

Statutes that we have relied on in the past is not as specific as it could be and may allow for legal argument in 

an enforcement case.  The CDC and DHHS via a memorandum of agreement with the City have granted the 

City delegated authority to conduct eating and lodging establishment inspections on behalf of the State of Maine 

for many years.  This change will allow us to continue the licensing and inspection of eating and lodging 

establishments in Auburn.   

 

 

 

Pro’s & Con’s:  

Pros- Allows for local inspections of eating and lodging establishments at annual intervals instead of 2-5 year 

intervals, if we were to rely on the State.  This makes The City of Auburn consistent with the state laws and 

regulations.  

 

 

Financial: None 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Vote to accept the first reading and hold a public hearing.  

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: None  

 

 

Attachments:  

 State of Maine Food Code 2013 

 Substantive Changes for Maine Food Code Rulemaking 

 Chapter 14 Business Licenses and Permits Article II Section 14-26 

 Public Hearing 

 Ordinance 08-09222014 

Council Meeting Date:   September 22, 2014 Ordinance  08-09222014 

Author:   

Cristy Bourget, Code Compliance Officer  

 Eric Cousens, Director of Planning & Development 



SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES FOR 
MAINE FOOD CODE RULEMAKING 

10-144 CMR 200 & 01-011 CMR 331 
 

GENERAL CHANGES THROUGHOUT MAINE FOOD CODE: 
 

1. Both the Department of Health & Human Resources Health Inspection Program 
(DHHS HIP) and Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry (DACF) 
agreed to specify that DACF oversees Food Establishments and DHHS HIP 
oversees Eating Establishments, to reflect Maine statute and make it clearer to the 
regulated community and the regulators. Therefore, throughout the Maine Food 
Code, sections now refer to both Eating Establishments and Food Establishments. 
Both types will be specified, rather than the 2001 Maine Food Code and 2009 
Federal Food Code, which refers to all establishments as Food Establishments. 
 

2. Dates and editions were added to any referenced laws or materials providing 
guidance to the regulation of eating or food establishments, as a result of 
recommendations from the AAGs representing DHHS HIP and DACF. 

 
CHAPTER 1 DEFINITIONS: 
 

1. The following definitions were added for consistency with the 2009 U.S. Model 
Food Code: 

 Balut  
 Casing 
 Commingle 
 Conditional Employee 
 Counter-Mounted 

Equipment 
 Critical Limit 
 Cut Leafy Greens 
 Dealer 
 Disclosure 
 Egg 
 Egg Product 
 E. Coli 
 Exclude 
 FDA 

 

 Handwashing Sink 
 Major Food Allergen 
 Mechanically Tenderized 
 Non-Continuous Cooking 
 Ratite 
 Ready-to-Eat Food 
 Reminder 
 Re-Service 
 Restrict 
 Restricted Egg 
 Risk 
 Shiga-Toxin Producing E. 

coli 
 

 

2. The following definitions were added for consistency with Maine Statute & Rules: 
 Bulk Food 
 Certified Food Protection Manager (CFPM) 
 Eating Establishment 
 Health Inspector 
 Health Practitioner 
 Service Animal 



 Sporting-Recreational Camp 
 

3. The definition of “Bed & Breakfast” was expanded to more accurately capture 
those B&B’s that are regulated by DHHS HIP. 
 

4. Definition of “Food Establishment” was changed to reflect the definition within 
Maine statute at 22 M.R.S.§2152(4-A). 
 

5. The definition of “Imminent Health Hazard” was expanded to list specific 
instances when an imminent health hazard is presented. 
 

6. The definition of “Potentially Hazardous Food” was changed, to be consistent 
with the 2009 Federal Model Food Code. 
 

7. In the definition of “Poultry”, the 2001 Maine Food Code stated that poultry did 
not include ratites. This exclusion was reversed to show that poultry does include 
ratites, to reflect the 2009 Federal Model Food Code. 
 

8. The definition of “Restricted Use Pesticide” was expanded to include a reference 
to the 2011 federal regulation at 40 CFR 152.175. Maine’s Pesticide Control 
Board recommended that the requirement for Pesticides classified for restricted 
use reflect Maine law and be limited to use by, or under, the direct supervision of 
a certified applicator.  22 M.R.S. §1471-C (23) was amended in 2011. 
 

9. The definition of “Service Animal” was expanded to reflect Maine statute 
regarding restrictions of service animals at Eating Establishments in Maine. (See 
5 M.R.S. §4553(9-E)(Amended 2011) and 17 M.R.S.§3966, which was also 
amended in 2011).  
 

10. “Temporary Food Establishment” definition was changed to “Temporary Eating 
Establishment” to name the appropriate type of establishment regulated by DHHS 
HIP.  

 
CHAPTER 2 MANAGEMENT & PERSONNEL: 
 
The following were added, in order to maintain consistency with the 2009 U.S. Model 
Food Code and 2011 U.S. Model Food Code Supplement: 

 Certified Food Protection Manager: Sections 2-102.12 & 2-102.20. 
 Responsibilities of Person In Charge for Ill Employees (Restrictions and 

Exclusions): Sections 2-201.11, 2-201.12 & 2-201.13; 
 Cleaning Procedures: Section 2-301.12 
 Responding to Contamination Events: Section 2-5. 

 
 
 
 



CHAPTER 3 FOOD: 
 

1. The following sections were incorporated from the 2009 U.S. Model Food Code 
& 2011 U.S. Model Food Code Supplement: 
 Juice Treated at 3-202.110 
 Food Employee contact with bare hands 3-301.11(E) 
 Heat Temperature of Food Table 3-401.11 
 Non-Continuous Cooking of Raw Animal Foods 3-401.14 
 Date Marking of Ready-to-Eat Potentially Hazardous Foods 3-501.17 
 Time as Public Health Control 3-501.19 
 Reduced Oxygen Packaging, Criteria 3-502.12 
 Juice Criteria 3-801.11 

 
2. Section 3-201.13 Fluid Milk and Milk Products and 3-202.14 Eggs and Milk 

Products, Pasteurized were updated to more accurately refer to the appropriate 
Maine statutes governing DACF’s regulation of milk and milk products. Instead 
of the outdated 7 M.R.S. §§ 2910 & 2904-A, the proposed reference in Section 3-
201.13 is 22 M.R.S. §2902-B, Sub-§§ 3 & 5, which was amended in 2005. And in 
Section 3-202.14, the proposed changes more accurately capture when 
pasteurized milk products may be served according to Maine law.  
 

3. Wild Mushrooms language was added into 3-201.16, in accordance with Maine 
statute and what is currently in effect regarding wild mushroom regulation. Part A 
is reserved for when there is a Wild Mushroom Harvesting Certification Program 
established under 22 M.R.S §2175. 
 

4. Missing sections that were mistakenly omitted and should have been included, 
were added in the 2001 Maine Food Code: 

• Section 3-801.11 (G) added, which states that food may be reserved 
(except in 3-801.11(H)), under the conditions in 3-306.16; and 

• Section 3-801.11 (H) added, which gives a list of when food may not be 
reserved (i.e. mainly patients in quarantine or medical isolation). 

 
CHAPTER 4 EQUIPMENT, UTENSILS, AND LINENS: 
 

1. The language limiting lead use in 4-101.13 was removed, because it was 
determined that the restrictions were intended for manufacturers and distributors. 
 

2. Major Federal Model Food Code additions were added into the following 
sections: 
 Auto-Dispensing of Detergents & Sanitizers Section 4-204.117; 
 Warewashing Cleaning Section 4-301.12; and 
 Warewashing Equipment, Sanitizers & Sanitizer Concentration Range Table 

Section 4-501.114. 
 



3. Subsection (E) was added to 4-204.13, which was inadvertently omitted. 
Subsection (E) addresses dispensing equipment of liquid Food and ice 
requirements. 

 
CHAPTER 5  WATER, PLUMBING, AND WASTE: 
 

1. Sampling requirements were revised to be consistent with the Maine Rules 
Relating to Drinking Water (10-144 CMR 231) at Maine Food Code, Section 5-1. 

 
2. Federal Model Food Code language was added for Backflow Prevention Device, 

Carbonator Section 5-203.15. 
 
CHAPTER 6  PHYSICAL FACILITIES: 
 
The requirement for the minimum number of toilets and urinals in Section 6-302.10 was 
revised. 
 
CHAPTER 7  POISONOUS OR TOXIC MATERIALS: 
 

1. Major additional language was added, to be consistent with the 2009 Federal 
Model Food Code and 2011 Federal Model Food Code Supplement: 
 Chemicals Section 7-204; and 
 Drying Agents, Criteria, Section 7-204.14 

 
2. Section 7-202.12 (C) was added for compliance with Maine Board of Pesticide 

laws. 
 
CHAPTER 8  COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT: 
 
Language was added regarding inspection frequency, based on changes to Maine statute 
(22 M.R.S. §2497).  

 Eating Establishment Inspections will occur minimally every 2 years, with 
more frequent inspections occurring, if the inspector deems it necessary as a 
result of various risk factors, Section 8-401.10; 

 Aggrieved parties are allowed 30 days to appeal agency decisions, rather than 
10 days. This change was intended to comply with the Maine Administrative 
Procedures Act. 



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 1 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

Sec. 14-26. Compliance with state and local law and rules required. 

Sec. 14-27. Penalty. 

Sec. 14-28. License for each location required. 

Sec. 14-29. Written application to be on approved form; submitted with appropriate fee. 

Sec. 14-30. Business beginning after application date. 

Sec. 14-31. Fees; waiver. 

Sec. 14-32. Applicants required to furnish information. 

Sec. 14-33. Investigation of applicants. 

Sec. 14-34. Certification from city officials. 

Sec. 14-35. Hearing before city council; notice. 

Sec. 14-36. Inspection of applicant's premises and merchandise. 

Sec. 14-37. Disapproval by city officials; appeal to city council. 

Sec. 14-38. Grounds and procedure for denial of license applications; exceptions. 

Sec. 14-39. Appeal. 

Sec. 14-40. Issuance of licenses. 

Sec. 14-41. Display of licenses. 

Sec. 14-42. Change of location of licensed business. 

Sec. 14-43. Nontransferability. 

Sec. 14-44. Duration of licenses; expiration date. 

Sec. 14-45. Effective date. 

Sec. 14-46. Responsibilities of licensee. 

Sec. 14-47. City officials to notify police of violators; prosecutions. 

Sec. 14-48. Suspensions and revocations; hearings. 

Sec. 14-49. Exemptions from license requirement or fees. 

Secs. 14-50—14-71. Reserved. 

 

 

Sec. 14-26. Compliance with state and local law and rules required. 

(a) Except as otherwise provided, no person shall engage in any business or activity, nor maintain any 
equipment or device, for which a license or permit is required, without having first complied with all 
applicable rules and regulations and having paid the proper fee and obtained a license therefore.  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 2 

(b) Specifically, all licensees and applicants for licenses are required to comply with state statutes and 
rules, city ordinances and rules and regulations of city departments which pertain to the business or 
activity for which a license is desired. State rules include and are not limited to:  

(1) State of Maine Food Code 200113 as adopted by the Maine Department of Health and Human 
Services,Health Inspection Program 10-144 CMR 200 & Department of Agriculture, 
Conservation and Forestry 01-01 CMR 331, last amended: October 1, 2013.  

 (2) CMR 200 and the Maine Department of Agriculture, Food and Rural Resources 01-001 CMR 
331, May 1, 2001.  

(32) Rules Relating to Lodging Establishments, Department of Health and Human Services, Maine 
Center for Disease Control and Prevention, Division of Environmental Health 10-144 CMR 206, 
January 1, 2003.  

(43) Rules relating to the Administration and Enforcement of Establishments Licensed by the Health 
Inspection Program, Department of Health and Human Services, Maine Center for Disease 
Control Prevention, Division of Environmental Health Inspection Program 10-144 CMR Chapter 
201, last Amended on October 7, 2012.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-26, 2-7-2011; Ord. No. 07-12172012, § 24-36(a), 1-7-2013)  

Sec. 14-27. Penalty. 

The violation of any provision of this division shall be punished by a civil penalty, payable to the city, 
of not less than $100.00 and not more than $2,500.00 for each offense, based on the severity of the 
offense and number of occurrences. Each act of violation and every day upon which any such violation 
occurs shall constitute a new and separate offense. In addition to such penalty, if the court finds for the 
city, the city shall recover its costs of suit, including reasonable experts' fees, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and reasonable and necessary investigative costs.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-27, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-28. License for each location required. 

A license is required for each place or premises where a business regulated by this chapter, or any 
part thereof, including storage, is conducted. No licensee shall engage in such business in any manner at 
any place without first obtaining such license. The provisions of this section shall not apply to the 
following licenses, except that a separate license shall be required for each cart, vehicle, conveyance or 
other carrier employed by such licensees: peddler, solicitor, sound amplification and taxicab.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-28, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-29. Written application to be on approved form; submitted with appropriate fee. 

Except when otherwise provided by the ordinances of the city, every application for a license shall be 
made in writing to the city clerk or designee upon a form to be provided by the clerk. Such application 
shall be signed by the applicant. The proper fee shall be paid to the clerk at the time of filing the 
application.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-29, 2-7-2011)  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 3 

Sec. 14-30. Business beginning after application date. 

The license fee for any business shall be due and payable before such business is begun, provided, 
that when the licensee begins such business after the expiration of six months of the current license year, 
then such licensee shall be required to pay one-half the applicable yearly license fee prescribed, except 
as provisions otherwise require payment of the full license fee.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-30, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-31. Fees; waiver. 

The fees for business licenses shall be paid by the owner or his agent in accordance with the 
business fee schedule established by the city council The city council is the only authority allowed to 
waive fees prescribed by ordinance. An application for waiver of any fees must be presented in writing to 
the city clerk to be brought to the city council at its next available meeting.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. §§ 24-31, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-32. Applicants required to furnish information. 

(a) Every applicant for a license shall furnish to the city the following information: 

(1) Complete and exact name under which the business is proposed to be operated; 

(2) If the business is proposed to be operated by an individual under any assumed name, the name 
of such individual and his address;  

(3) If the business is a partnership, the name and address of each partner; 

(4) If the business is a corporation, the name and address of the officers of the corporation, and the 
location of the principal office;  

(5) Nature of the business for which a license is desired; 

(6) Proposed physical location; and 

(7) Proof of ownership or legitimate interest in property where business is to be conducted. 

(b) In addition to the foregoing, the applicant shall furnish to the city clerk or designee such other 
information as may be required by him in order to enable him to determine the proper classification 
of the applicant and the appropriate license fee and any other associated costs directly related to the 
application for a license, such as, but not limited to, the costs of public hearing ads and background 
check.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-32, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-33. Investigation of applicants. 

Wherever his approval is required or upon the request of the city clerk, the police chief may cause an 
investigation of any applicant for a license to be conducted prior to approval of such application for a 
license or permit.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-33, 2-7-2011)  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 4 

Sec. 14-34. Certification from city officials. 

(a) Before an applicant receives a license, the city clerk shall submit the application for certification to 
the code enforcement officer, fire chief, police chief and city treasurer or their designee.  

(b) Each city official has the authority to use back ground investigations, city records and any other 
means necessary to review each application in the course of the approval or denial process.  

(c) The code enforcement officer shall inspect the premises to determine whether the facilities are 
sanitary and in compliance with the provisions of land use regulations, building standards and codes 
as well as all state and city rules and regulations for the type of business activities intended to be 
conducted.  

(d) The fire chief shall determine whether the premises are free of a health safety and fire hazards and 
in compliance with all applicable standards.  

(e) The police chief shall certify that the applicant has not had a history of complaints or problems on the 
proposed business, applicants, owners or managers; where the approval of the license would be 
adverse to the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the city.  

(f) The city treasurer shall certify that all taxes and any monies due to the city have been paid or are 
current.  

(g) In any case where the city requires the approval of the building inspector, code enforcement officer, 
police chief, fire chief or any other city official prior to issuance of the license, it shall be the duty of 
the city clerk or designee to notify in writing the officials whose approvals are required.  

(h) The officials so notified, or their duly delegated representatives, shall approve or disapprove the 
application without delay and shall note their approval or disapproval thereon, stating the reasons for 
any disapproval.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-34, 2-7-2011; Ord. No. 07-12172012, § 24-36, 1-7-2013)  

Sec. 14-35. Hearing before city council; notice. 

When required by the city council, a hearing will be held at which time the council shall decide 
whether to approve or disapprove any application for a license or permit. It shall be the duty of the city 
clerk or designee to notify the applicant of the time and place of the hearing. Such notice shall be mailed 
by the city clerk, postage prepaid, to the applicant at his last known address at least 48 hours prior to the 
date set for such hearing.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-34, 2-7-2011; Ord. No. 07-12172012, § 24-36, 1-7-2013)  

Sec. 14-36. Inspection of applicant's premises and merchandise. 

Whenever required by state law, the ordinances of the city, the regulations of any city department, or 
upon the request of the city clerk, an inspection may be made of the applicant's premises or merchandise 
by the city assessors, police chief, fire chief, code enforcement officer, building inspector or other duly 
authorized city official prior to approval of any application for a license or permit. In addition, the premises 
or merchandise of every licensee shall be subject to such inspection at any time during the current 
license year; and the results of such inspections may be grounds for the suspension or revocation of any 
license issued by the city.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-35, 2-7-2011)  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 5 

Sec. 14-37. Disapproval by city officials; appeal to city council. 

(a) In any case where the city requires the approval of the building inspector, code enforcement officer, 
police chief, fire chief or any other city official prior to issuance of the license, it shall be the duty of 
the city clerk or designee to notify in writing the officials whose approvals are required.  

(b) The officials so notified, or their duly delegated representatives, shall approve or disapprove the 
application without delay and shall note their approval or disapproval thereon, stating the reasons for 
any disapproval. When required by the city council, a hearing will be held at which time the council 
shall decide whether to approve or disapprove any application for a license or permit. It shall be the 
duty of the city clerk or designee to notify the applicant of the time and place of the hearing. Such 
notice shall be mailed by the city clerk, postage prepaid, to the applicant at his last known address at 
least 48 hours prior to the date set for such hearing.  

(c) The decision and order of the council on such hearing shall be final and conclusive. 

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-36, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-38. Grounds and procedure for denial of license applications; exceptions. 

(a) Except as otherwise specifically provided in this section, a license under this chapter shall be denied 
if the council makes a finding that:  

(1) The applicant is a corporation that is not licensed to do business in the state; 

(2) The applicant is a corporation, of which, at any time during the previous five years, a principal 
officer, or a person having an actual or beneficial ownership interest or management authority 
therein has been convicted of (a) any Class A, Class B, or Class C crime, or (b) a crime 
committed under the laws of the United States of America or of any other state or territory 
thereof, that is punishable (whether or not such punishment was actually imposed) by a 
sentence at least as harsh as that that is authorized for the commission of a Class C crime 
under state law; provided that such conviction was for an offense that is rationally related to the 
regulation of the business sought to be licensed;  

(3) The applicant has been convicted of (a) any Class A, Class B or Class C crime, or (b) a crime 
committed under the laws of the United States of America or of any other state or territory 
thereof, that is punishable (whether or not such punishment was actually imposed) by a 
sentence at least as harsh as that that is authorized for the commission of a Class C crime 
under Maine law; provided that such conviction was for an offense that is rationally related to 
the regulation of the business sought to be licensed;  

(4) The applicant has had his business license revoked within the five years preceding the date of 
the application;  

(5) The applicant is a corporation, person or other business entity which does or will employ a 
person (a) who will be substantially in the ownership or management of the business and the 
employee's business license has been revoked within the five years preceding the application; 
or (b) who was a principal of any corporation whose business license has been revoked within 
the five years preceding the application;  

(6) The applicant is a corporation, person or other business entity of which any person is a principal 
who will be substantially involved in the ownership or management of the business and the 
principal's business license has been revoked within the five years preceding the application;  

(7) The proposed licensed premises or its use fails to comply with zoning or other land use 
ordinances;  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 6 

(8) The proposed licensed premises or its use fails to comply with any municipal ordinance or 
regulation;  

(9) There exist on or about the premises proposed to be licensed conditions such as waste 
disposal violations, health or safety violations or other such conditions that unreasonably 
disturb, interfere with, or affect the ability of persons or businesses residing or located in the 
vicinity of the licensed premises to use or enjoy their property in a reasonable manner;  

(10) The applicant has knowingly furnished false or misleading information on his application. 

(b) No license or permit shall be issued by the city clerk or designee following a hearing at which the city 
council has disapproved any application for such license. In addition, the city clerk or designee shall 
deny a license or permit to any person whose application was disapproved by any city official whose 
approval was required.  

(c) No license or permit shall be issued to any person who is indebted to the city upon any claim, tax or 
account that is more than 60 days delinquent. The city treasurer shall be responsible for making 
available to the city clerk or designee and any other license-issuing officers such information as is 
essential for compliance with this section.  

(d) In case an application is disapproved, the city clerk or designee shall then notify the applicant in 
writing of such denial and shall refund the fee paid in. The city clerk or designee shall also notify the 
city council of such action at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the city council.  

(e) In the event that the council, in an exercise of its sound discretion, determines that there exist 
extenuating circumstances with respect to the grounds for denial of a license or that the 
circumstances giving rise to the denial can be ameliorated by the imposition of conditions or 
limitations to the grant of a license, the council may, notwithstanding the grounds set forth in this 
section, grant a license to the applicant upon such conditions as the council in an exercise of its 
sound discretion deems to be just and appropriate.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. §§ 24-36, 24-37, 2-7-2011; Ord. No. 07-12172012, § 24-36, 24-37, 1-
7-2013)  

Sec. 14-39. Appeal. 

(a) Except as otherwise provided, appeals shall be made by filing a written notice of appeal with the 
office of the city clerk or designee within 30 days of the date of any such denial to the council in 
writing, whereupon a hearing will be scheduled, at which time the applicant shall have the right to be 
heard. It shall be the duty of the city clerk or designee to notify such applicants who have appealed, 
of the time and place of the hearing.  

(b) Such notice shall be mailed by the city clerk, postage prepaid, to the applicant at the address 
furnished on the application form at least 48 hours prior to the date set for hearing. The city council 
may, at that time, approve any application previously denied by the affirmative vote of five or more 
members of the council.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-37, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-40. Issuance of licenses. 

Except where the ordinances of the city require a license to be signed by some other official or 
where otherwise provided for by the city council, the city clerk or designee shall issue all licenses for 
which an application has been submitted and approved.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-38, 2-7-2011)  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 7 

Sec. 14-41. Display of licenses. 

Every license shall be kept prominently displayed at the place of business of the licensee named in 
the license, or, in the case of equipment licenses, the license shall be affixed to such machines or 
equipment as required to allow such license to be inspected at any time by any proper city official.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-39, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-42. Change of location of licensed business. 

No license issued in accordance with the provisions of this chapter for the conduct of any business at 
a fixed place designated in the license issued therefore shall be valid for the conduct of such business at 
any place other than that designated in such license.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-40, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-43. Nontransferability. 

Every license issued by the city shall be a personal privilege and shall not be assignable or 
transferable.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-41, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-44. Duration of licenses; expiration date. 

All licenses, except when otherwise provided, shall be for 12 months' duration and shall expire on 
the last day of the expiration month according to the following schedule:  

Type of License Term of License Expiration 

Adult Amusement Device One Year June 

Automobile Graveyard One Year  October 

Beano/Bingo Six Months, Or Up To Three Years 

Maximum 

December 

Bowling/Pool One Year Coincides With Food 

License 

Circus/Traveling Amusement Show Per Day Per Event 

Coin-Operated Device One Year June 

Exhibition/Performance /Show Per Day Per Event 



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 8 

Flea Market 30 Days, 60 Days, 90 Days, Or One 

Year 

Per Event 

Food Service Establishment Class A—E, G One Year One Year From Date Of 

Issuance 

Food Service Establishment Class F Up To 30 Days Per Event 

Itinerant Vendor 30 Days, 60 Days, 90 Days, Or One 

Year 

Per Event 

Junk Collector/ Pawnbroker/Secondhand 

Dealer 

One Year Date Of Issuance 

Mass Gathering/Event Per Day Per Event 

Massage Establishment One Year Date Of Issuance 

Motion Picture Theater One Year January 

Outpatient Addiction Treatment Clinic One Year Date Of Issuance 

Peddler Up To 30 Days Per Event 

Roller Skating Rink One Year April 

Roving Diner/Mobile Food Vendor 3 Months, 6 Months, One Year April 

Special Amusement One Year Coincides With Liquor 

License 

Tattoo One Year Date Of Issuance 

Taxicab/Taxicab Driver One Year December 

  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-43, 2-7-2011)  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 9 

Sec. 14-45. Effective date. 

Unless otherwise provided upon issuance of the license, the effective date of all licenses shall be the 
date of issuance.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-44, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-46. Responsibilities of licensee. 

It shall be the responsibility of the licensee of establishments regulated by this chapter to make 
certain that all rules and regulations prescribed by this chapter and state law are complied with, and each 
licensee shall cooperate fully with city officials to enforce such regulations.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-45, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-47. City officials to notify police of violators; prosecutions. 

Any city official having knowledge of any person operating any business or activity regulated by this 
chapter without the required license, or violating any state or local regulations, shall furnish the police 
chief the name of such person. It shall be the duty of the police chief to commence proceedings against 
the offenders of this chapter.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-46, 2-7-2011)  

Sec. 14-48. Suspensions and revocations; hearings. 

(a) Where provided, duly authorized city officials; police chief, fire chief or code enforcement officer; 
shall have the power to temporarily suspend licenses, upon written notification of violation, for a 
period of up to five calendar days, when the continued operation of the licensed business or activity 
presents a danger to the health, safety or general welfare of the public. This temporary suspension 
can be revoked when the licensed business rectifies the deficiencies which presented the danger.  

(b) Any license issued by the city may be suspended or revoked by the city council and any license fees 
retained by the city, upon a finding by the council that the licensee has violated the ordinances of the 
city or the laws of the State, or has willfully or persistently failed to comply with any applicable rules 
and regulations. Any action to suspend or revoke a license may be commenced upon the initiative of 
the council, upon the recommendation of any city official charged with approving, inspecting or 
otherwise regulating the licensee's business or activity, or upon complaint from any resident of the 
city.  

(c) Prior to suspending or revoking a license, the city council shall hold a hearing at the regular meeting 
of the council or a special meeting thereof called for that purpose. At such a meeting, the licensee 
shall have the right to be heard. Notice of the hearing for suspension or revocation of a license shall 
be given in writing, setting forth specifically the grounds of the complaint and the time and place of 
the hearing. Such notice shall be mailed by the city clerk, postage prepaid, to the licensee at his last 
known address at least 48 hours prior to the date set for hearing. The decision and order of the city 
council at such hearings shall be final and conclusive.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-47, 2-7-2011)  



PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 14 - BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS 

ARTICLE II. LICENSES 

 Auburn, Maine, Code of Ordinances Page 10 

Sec. 14-49. Exemptions from license requirement or fees. 

(a) Persons acting pursuant to an order or process of a court of competent jurisdiction and persons 
acting in accordance with their powers and duties as public officers, such as sheriffs and marshals, 
shall not be required to secure a local license.  

(b) Orphanages and public and private hospitals, as defined in the laws of the State, shall not be 
required to secure a local business license to operate a children's home or day care facility.  

(c) Persons selling, exclusively, farm, dairy, orchard or fish products of their own production shall not be 
required to obtain a local license.  

(d) No charge shall be made for the issuance of a solicitor's license, blasting permit or chimney cleaner 
permit; however, persons traveling by foot, wagon, automotive vehicle or any other type of 
conveyance, from place to place, from house to house or from street to street selling magazines or 
other merchandise by sample, list or catalogue for future delivery shall be required to obtain a local 
itinerant vendor/peddler's license.  

(e) Persons licensed in accordance with state law to maintain an automobile graveyard or junkyard shall 
not be required to obtain a local license to also operate as a junk collector.  

(f) Persons who use their own homes to provide foster care to children shall not be required to obtain a 
local license.  

(g) Public or private school cafeterias and nursing homes shall not be required to obtain a local food 
service establishment license.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-48, 2-7-2011)  

Secs. 14-50—14-71. Reserved. 



LEGAL NOTICE 

 

City of Auburn 

 
 

The Auburn City Council will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, September 22, 2014 at 7:00 

p.m. in the Council Chambers at Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine to consider the 

following: 

 

Adoption of the State of Maine Food Code 2013. State Mandated amendment to Chapter 14, 

Article II- Licenses, Section 14-26. Compliance with state and local law and rules required. 

 

 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three David Young, At Large 
Adam Lee, Ward Four 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE 08-09222014 

BE IT ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council amend to Chapter 14, Article II- Licenses, Section 
14-26. Compliance with state and local law and rules required of the City of Auburn Ordinances to adopt the 
Maine Food Code 2013 by reference.  



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewals 
 
Information: This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. 
Applications and payments have been received in the City Clerk’s Office. A public hearing and Council 
approval is required. The public hearing will be held on the September 22, 2014 City Council Meeting. These 
facilities have been inspected by the Code Enforcement Office. The Fire Department has approved. 
  
 Buck’s Auto, 249 Merrow Road  
 Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street 
 M&P Auto, 227 Merrow Road 
 Isadore T. Miller Co., a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road 
 Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington St. N  
 Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington St. N 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: n/a 
 
Financial: n/a 
 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion on September 08, 2014. Public hearing and 
recommend approval.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 
• Inspection Memo from Eric Cousens 
• 30-A §3753 
• 30-A §3754 
• 30-A §3756  
• Public Hearing Ad 
• Order  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Order  78-09222014 
    
Author:   Alison F. Pepin, License Specialist 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



City of Auburn 
Public Hearing 

 
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the Municipal Officers of the City of 
Auburn on the following applications for Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard Permits. The public hearing 
will be held on Monday, September 22, 2014, in the Council Chambers, Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street at 
7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as it may be heard. All interested persons may appear and will be 
given the opportunity to be heard before final action is taken on said applications. 
 

Prolerized New England – 522 Washington St. N 
Isadore T. Miller – 79 & 80 Old Hotel Rd. 

Randy’s Auto Parts – 899 Broad St. 
M & P Auto, Inc. – 227 Merrow Rd. 

Morris Auto Mart – 940 Washington ST. N 
Buck’s Auto -249 Merrow Rd. 

 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 78-09222014 
 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 
permit for Buck’s Auto, 227 Merrow Road.  

Page 1 of 1 
 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewals 
 
Information: This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. 
Applications and payments have been received in the City Clerk’s Office. A public hearing and Council 
approval is required. The public hearing will be held on the September 22, 2014 City Council Meeting. These 
facilities have been inspected by the Code Enforcement Office. The Fire Department has approved. 
  
 Buck’s Auto, 249 Merrow Road  
 Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street 
 M&P Auto, 227 Merrow Road 
 Isadore T. Miller Co., a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road 
 Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington St. N  
 Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington St. N 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: n/a 
 
Financial: n/a 
 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion on September 08, 2014. Public hearing and 
recommend approval.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 
• Inspection Memo from Eric Cousens 
• 30-A §3753 
• 30-A §3754 
• 30-A §3756  
• Public Hearing Ad 
• Order  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Order  79-09222014 
    
Author:   Alison F. Pepin, License Specialist 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 79-09222014 
 
   
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 
permit for Morris Auto Parts, 940 Washington Street North. 

Page 1 of 1 
 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewals 
 
Information: This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. 
Applications and payments have been received in the City Clerk’s Office. A public hearing and Council 
approval is required. The public hearing will be held on the September 22, 2014 City Council Meeting. These 
facilities have been inspected by the Code Enforcement Office. The Fire Department has approved. 
  
 Buck’s Auto, 249 Merrow Road  
 Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street 
 M&P Auto, 227 Merrow Road 
 Isadore T. Miller Co., a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road 
 Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington St. N  
 Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington St. N 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: n/a 
 
Financial: n/a 
 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion on September 08, 2014. Public hearing and 
recommend approval.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 
• Inspection Memo from Eric Cousens 
• 30-A §3753 
• 30-A §3754 
• 30-A §3756  
• Public Hearing Ad 
• Order  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Order  80-09222014 
    
Author:   Alison F. Pepin, License Specialist 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 80-09222014 
 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 
permit for M & P Auto, 227 Merrow Road.  
 

Page 1 of 1 
 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewals 
 
Information: This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. 
Applications and payments have been received in the City Clerk’s Office. A public hearing and Council 
approval is required. The public hearing will be held on the September 22, 2014 City Council Meeting. These 
facilities have been inspected by the Code Enforcement Office. The Fire Department has approved. 
  
 Buck’s Auto, 249 Merrow Road  
 Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street 
 M&P Auto, 227 Merrow Road 
 Isadore T. Miller Co., a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road 
 Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington St. N  
 Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington St. N 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: n/a 
 
Financial: n/a 
 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion on September 08, 2014. Public hearing and 
recommend approval.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 
• Inspection Memo from Eric Cousens 
• 30-A §3753 
• 30-A §3754 
• 30-A §3756  
• Public Hearing Ad 
• Order  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Order  81-09222014 
    
Author:   Alison F. Pepin, License Specialist 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 81-09222014 
 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 
permit for Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street.  

Page 1 of 1 
 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewals 
 
Information: This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. 
Applications and payments have been received in the City Clerk’s Office. A public hearing and Council 
approval is required. The public hearing will be held on the September 22, 2014 City Council Meeting. These 
facilities have been inspected by the Code Enforcement Office. The Fire Department has approved. 
  
 Buck’s Auto, 249 Merrow Road  
 Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street 
 M&P Auto, 227 Merrow Road 
 Isadore T. Miller Co., a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road 
 Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington St. N  
 Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington St. N 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: n/a 
 
Financial: n/a 
 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion on September 08, 2014. Public hearing and 
recommend approval.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 
• Inspection Memo from Eric Cousens 
• 30-A §3753 
• 30-A §3754 
• 30-A §3756  
• Public Hearing Ad 
• Order  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Order  82-09222014 
    
Author:   Alison F. Pepin, License Specialist 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 82-09222014 
 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 
permit for Isadore T. Miller, a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road.  

Page 1 of 1 
 



City Council 
Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  
 

 
 
Subject: Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permit renewals 
 
Information: This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. 
Applications and payments have been received in the City Clerk’s Office. A public hearing and Council 
approval is required. The public hearing will be held on the September 22, 2014 City Council Meeting. These 
facilities have been inspected by the Code Enforcement Office. The Fire Department has approved. 
  
 Buck’s Auto, 249 Merrow Road  
 Randy’s Auto Parts, 899 Broad Street 
 M&P Auto, 227 Merrow Road 
 Isadore T. Miller Co., a Division of Schnitzer NE, 78 & 80 Old Hotel Road 
 Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington St. N  
 Morris Auto Mart, 940 Washington St. N 

 
Pro’s & Con’s: n/a 
 
Financial: n/a 
 
Action Requested at this Meeting: Workshop discussion on September 08, 2014. Public hearing and 
recommend approval.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 
 
Attachments:  

• Applications 
• Inspection Memo from Eric Cousens 
• 30-A §3753 
• 30-A §3754 
• 30-A §3756  
• Public Hearing Ad 
• Order  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  September 22, 2014 Order  83-09222014 
    
Author:   Alison F. Pepin, License Specialist 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 
 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 
Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 
David Young, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 
 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 83-09222014 
 
 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto Graveyard/Junkyard 
permit for Prolerized New England Company, LLC, 522 Washington Street North.  

Page 1 of 1 
 



City Council 
Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 
 
  Council Meeting Date: 09/22/2014  
 
  Subject: Executive Session  
 

Information: Discussion regarding Minot Avenue Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 
405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 
disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 
investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 
reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 
prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 
may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 
to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 
the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 
of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 
pending enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda 09-22-2014 AMENDED
	1  Workshop Info Sheet Assessing
	1a  Contract Auburn ME Assessing Dept Study FINAL 06-25-14
	1b  Contract Auburn ME Assessing Dept Study REVISED FINAL 07-31-14
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	II. SCOPE OF WORK
	IV. MRI PERSONNEL IN CHARGE

	1c  MAINE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION ASSESSOR MANUAL excerpts
	Liability of Assessors
	Generally
	Establishing the Board or Single Assessor


	1d  title36sec327
	1e  Citizens Commission on Lewiston- Auburn Cooperation Assessing Recommendations 19 dec2008
	1f  Assessing2008budget
	1g  Assessing2015budget
	1h  MRIemailforserviceswithAuburnandLewiston
	2  Workshop Executive Session
	3  Agenda Info Sheet Resolve 09-09222014
	3a  Resolve 09-09222014 Rec Trail Grant Application (2)
	3b  Detail of Barker Mill from ALT GW Plan
	3c  Barker Mill Rec Trail Grant Small Map 8-29-14
	3d  Barker Trail Extension Estimate 9-8-14
	3e  Barker Mill Power point
	3f  Rec Trails Grant Memo 9-22-14
	3g  09-08-2014 Amended Minutes
	4  final august 2014 finance report
	FY15 August Finance Rpt.pdf
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary

	Arena Monthly Report- August 2014.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement


	4a  BADGE PINNING  Memo to CM
	Memorandum

	4b  USA-Poland_INFIRENET
	4c  General Dabrowa  RE -- Cadet Janik
	4d  Proclamation for Norbert Janik
	Recognizing Cadet Officer Norbert Janik of the Main School of the Fire Service located in Warsaw Poland for his internship with the Auburn Fire Department

	5  Agenda Info Sheet NEC
	5a  NEC documents
	4a  Adoption of the 2014 NEC NFPA 70
	4b  Top_12_changes_2014_NEC
	4c  Importance of adopting the NEC
	4d  Electrical inspection for public safety

	5b  Answers for September 22 2014
	5c  Electrical inspection for public safety
	5d  Ordinance 06-08182014 NEC National Electric Code
	6  Agenda Info Sheet Taylor Pond
	Previous Meetings and History:
	Attachments:

	6a  Taylor Pond Documents
	3a  Petition for ZOMA 1194
	3b  Staff Report ZOMA 1194
	3c  Taylor Pond ZOMA Comp Plan Recommendation
	3d  Taylor Pond ZOMA Existing Zoning
	3e  Taylor Pond ZOMA Proposed Zoning
	3f  Taylor Pond ZOMA zoning map REV 7-16-14
	3g  Environmental Contraints

	6b  Approved Planning Board Minutes 7 8 14
	6c  Legal Notice City Council Zoning
	6d  PB Taylor Pond Zone Change Report 9-9-14
	6e  Taylor Pond Zone Change Memo 9-22-14
	6f  Ordinance 07-09082014 Taylor Pond
	7  Agenda Info Sheet Resolve 10-09222014 Finance Committee
	7a  Resolve 10-09222014 Creation of a Finance Committee
	7b  Finance Committee Memo 2 090214 (2)
	8  Agenda Info Sheet Maine Food Code 2013  9-22-2014
	8a  List of Major Changes Revised 10-03-2013
	8b  Chapter 14 Business License  Permits Maine Food Code 2013
	8c  Legal Notice City Council Food Code
	8d  Ordinance 08-09222014 Maine Food Code
	9  Agenda Info Sheet Order 78-09222014
	9a  Legal Notice Junkyards
	9b  Order 78-09222014 Bucks Auto
	9c  Agenda Info Sheet Order 79-09222014
	9d  Order 79-09222014 Morris
	9e  Agenda Info Sheet Order 80-09222014
	9f  Order 80-09222014 M&P
	9g  Agenda Info Sheet Order 81-09222014
	9h  Order 81-09222014 Randys
	9i  Agenda Info Sheet 82-09222014
	9j  Order 82-09222014 Isadore
	9k  Agenda Info Sheet 83-09222014
	9l  Order 83-09222014
	10  Executive Session info sheet 2



